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MARESSA TREAT
OKILAHOMA COUNTY CLERK

November 13, 2025

To the Citizens of Oklahoma County and the Honorable Members of the Oklahoma County
Budget Board:

We hereby issue the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
of Oklahoma County, herein referred to as the County, for the fiscal year (FY) ended June 30,
2024. The ACFR provides an overarching summary of the County’s financial position as of
June 30, 2024, and the results of County operations from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024.
The Oklahoma County Clerk’s Finance Department prepared this report using Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB); it has been audited by the Office of the State Auditor and Inspector
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Oklahoma County government is a subdivision of the state government; the powers
exercised by the County are those delegated by the State, as authorized by the Oklahoma
Legislature and the Oklahoma Constitution. The County is a multimillion-dollar government
entity that currently employs over 2,000 people. According to the 2024 U.S. Census,
Oklahoma County has an estimated population of 816,490 as of July 1, 2024, making it the
most populous county in the state of Oklahoma. The citizens of the County elect eight
officials: an Assessor, County Clerk, Court Clerk, Treasurer, Sheriff, and three County
Commissioners. These elected officials are responsible for the administration of services
provided by their individual Office and serve on public boards, including the Board of County
Commissioners and the Oklahoma County Budget Board (Budget Board), to collectively
conduct County business.

The financial reporting entity consists of the primary government and component units:
legally separate organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable,
and other organizations for which the primary government is not financially accountable, but
for which the significance of their relationship with the County is such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

_____
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The County has four component units: The Oklahoma County Finance Authority, the
Oklahoma County Criminal Justice Authority, Oklahoma County Employee’s Retirement
System, and the Oklahoma County Public Buildings Authority. All four entities issue
separately audited Component Unit Financial Statements.

The following related organizations are excluded from the financial reporting entity because
the County has determined that these entities do not meet the criteria of a component unit,
as previously defined: Oklahoma Industries Authority, Oklahoma County Industrial
Authority, and Oklahoma County Utility Services Authority. Financial statements are
available separately from these related organizations.

The County has adopted the County Budget Act in accordance with Title 19 of Oklahoma
Statute (O.S.) 88 1401-1421. The purpose of the act is to establish uniform and sound fiscal
procedures for the preparation, adoption, execution, and control of the County’s budget as
well as foster cooperation among the elected officials to promote effective and informed
operations. The Budget Board, established pursuantto 19 O.S. § 1407, has made every effort
to comply with the guidelines of the Oklahoma County Budget Act.

The County exercises multiple levels of budgetary review. The process begins with the
County Clerk’s Finance Department. This team works closely with each office and county
department to prepare for the Budget Evaluation Team (BET) public meetings. The BET
assesses each department’s fiscal needs and proposes a tentative annual budget at least
thirty days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year. The proposed budget is then made
available for public review and hearing, followed by examination and approval of the Budget
Board, and subject to final endorsement by the Excise Board. Once approved, the budget is
filed with the Excise Board and the State Auditor and Inspector and becomes operational on
July 1st, the beginning of the new fiscal year. Adjustments to the budget are often imposed
after the County calculates ad valorem tax revenues in September of each year.

Throughout the fiscal year, the County maintains a financial and budgetary control system
whereby expenditures and revenues are tracked in an enterprise system to ensure
adherence to the budget. Monthly reports are prepared and presented to the Budget Board
that compare actual revenues and expenditures to budgeted amounts to delineate the
County’s cash position.

The County has established internal controls over its finances, which are reviewed internally
on an ongoing basis and annually as a part of the audit conducted by the State Auditor and
Inspector, pursuant to 19 O.S. 8 171. The Independent Auditor’s Report precedes the
financial section of this ACFR. The County’s accounting and auditing processes are designed
to ensure the integrity of financial reporting and regulatory compliance. These controls
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protect public assets, ensure accurate recording and usage of public funds, and help to
prevent fraud and abuse.

Examples of the County’s internal controls include separation of duties, access controls,
annual inventories, use of standardized documents, periodic trial balances and
reconciliations, and approval workflows. It is important to recognize that due to inherent
limitations, including human error and system failures, internal controls can only offer
reasonable assurance, not absolute certainty.

The responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of this report rests with the County. As
management, we assert to the best of our knowledge and belief that the information
presented is accurate in all material respects and that all necessary disclosures are
included, enabling the reader to gain an understanding of the County’s financial activity.

Management has provided a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of a Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read
in conjunction with it. The County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

Profile of Oklahoma County

Situated in the heart of downtown Oklahoma City (OKC), the Oklahoma County Courthouse
and Office Building is the hub of Oklahoma County government. However, County
operations span throughout Oklahoma County at various sites including the detention
center, Juvenile Justice Center, Election Board, Sheriff’s offices and substations, and a
laydown yard in each of the three districts.

The land area of Oklahoma County is 718 square miles. Oklahoma City remains the largest
city in Oklahoma County and continues to serve as a vital economic engine for the county
and the surrounding region. The City’s increasingly vibrant metropolitan area is rapidly
emerging as a model for economic revitalization and effective public-private partnerships
and collaborations.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition
Local Economy
As the largest county in the state and home of the State Capitol, Oklahoma County

constitutes approximately 20 percent of Oklahoma’s population and 21 percent of the
state's labor force. The availability of low-priced real estate, an abundant skilled labor force,
a low cost of doing business, and a centralized geographical location make Oklahoma
County a prime location for business investment and expansion. These assets continue to
be the key to Oklahoma County's growth, reflected by its 3.7% unemployment rate,
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compared to the national 4.1% rate, as of June 2024. According to the latest data from the
U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, OKC, a significant part of Oklahoma County’s population and
work force, had the fourth lowest unemployment rate among major U.S. metropolitan areas
with a population over one million. This performance underscores the region's strong
economic resilience and favorable labor market conditions.

The energy sector contributes around $9,000,000,000 to the County's Gross Domestic
Product (GDP), although it faces challenges from fluctuating global prices according to the
U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. Nevertheless, Oklahoma County continues to demonstrate
impressive diversification beyond its historical ties to the energy sector. This positive
trajectory is a testament to the ongoing efforts of business and community leaders who have
successfully fortified the local economy against the "boom and bust" cycles traditionally
associated with the oil industry. The metropolitan economy now features a dynamic blend
of sectors, including government, health care, retail trade, construction, education,
hospitality, aerospace, and professional services.

The post-pandemic recovery has not only revitalized the workforce but has also led to a surge
in entrepreneurship and innovation, particularly in the technology and healthcare sectors.
Job growth has been particularly strong in the healthcare sector, which now employs over
65,000 individuals, driven by an expanding population and increasing demand for medical
services. Investments in infrastructure have enhanced the region's resilience to severe
weather events, fostering a culture of preparedness and community engagement.
Additionally, while interest rates have remained elevated, they have prompted a shift
towards sustainable development practices in the housing and construction markets,
encouraging long-term growth strategies. The presence of Tinker Air Force Base continues to
be a cornerstone of economic stability, driving job creation and fostering collaboration
across sectors, including aerospace. In fact, Oklahoma ranked #9 in the nation for job
creation according to a May 2024 report issued by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. With
these positive developments, Oklahoma County is well-positioned to seize future
opportunities, ensuring sustainable growth and prosperity for its residents in the years to
come.

In 2024, OKC maintained its reputation for affordability, ranking number one for the lowest
cost of living among all reporting large cities with populations over 500,000.

Additionally, it continues to be recognized as one of the best cities for young professionals,
solidifying its appeal as a destination for talent and innovation. Several 2024 initiatives can
be highlighted that further enhance OKC'’s status as a dynamic urban center:
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e Sustainable Development Initiatives: OKC has committed to reducing its carbon
footprint by 30% by 2030, with ongoing projects focused on green building practices
and renewable energy. The city has implemented over 15 new eco-friendly public
buildings, including the recently completed City Hall Annex, which features energy-
efficient systems and sustainable materials. Additionally, the expansion of urban
green spaces has added over 200 acres of parks and recreational areas, promoting a
healthier environment for residents.

e Tech and Innovation Growth: The Innovation District saw a 25% increase in tech
startups since 2023, with over 50 new companies establishing operations in the area.
Partnerships with local universities, such as the University of Oklahoma and
Oklahoma State University, have led to the creation of over 300 jobs in the bioscience
and technology sectors. The city has also launched a $5,000,000 grant program to
support entrepreneurs and small businesses, fostering a thriving ecosystem for
innovation.

e Cultural and Arts Expansion: OKC invested $2,000,000 in public art projects in 2024,
resulting in the installation of 15 new murals and sculptures throughout the city. The
annual Arts Festival attracted over 100,000 visitors in 2024, showcasing the work of
more than 150 local artists. Additionally, the city has partnered with local cultural
organizations to host monthly art walks, further enriching the community's cultural
landscape.

e Transportation and Infrastructure Improvements: As result of investments in
transportation, the OKC area transit system (operated by EMBARK) reached an
annual ridership of 2,987,100 in 2024. On average, EMBARK saw a 2% growth in
ridership each month throughout 2024. Furthermore, in July 2024, OKC Council voted
to approve a 17-mile route for the new MAPS 4 Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) corridor in
northeast and south OKC, including 140 bus stops across the city that were deemed
the highest priority based on daily ridership. FY 2024 was a year of significant
achievement in completion of this route, with the northeast improvements open to
service as of January 2025. Ultimate completion of this BRT route will further serve
key destinations, connect communities and resources, expand equitable mobility
options for residents, and promote sustainable commuting options in the upcoming
years.

e Sports and Entertainment Developments: Investments in the Paycom Arena and
surrounding infrastructure have enhanced the experience for sports enthusiasts,
contributing to a vibrant entertainment scene that includes concerts and sporting
events. In December 2023, OKC residents passed the “Keep OKC Big League”
campaign to build a new arena for the Oklahoma City Thunder over the next ten years.
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A study conducted by the Greater Oklahoma City Chamber of Commerce concluded
that the arena has an estimated annual impact of $590,000,000, supporting more
than 3,000 jobs. The study also estimated that the construction of the new arena
would generate more than $1,300,000,000 during the construction period and
support more than 10,000 jobs. Furthermore, in June 2024, the Los Angeles based
U.S. Olympic Committee announced that OKC will be the host site for the canoe
slalom and softball events in the 2028 Summer Olympics.

e Revitalization of Historic Areas: The Plaza District has seen a 30% increase in new
businesses since 2023, with over 20 new shops, restaurants, and galleries openingin
the area. The revitalization efforts have preserved the district's historic charm while
creating new opportunities for local entrepreneurs. Film Row has also experienced a
resurgence, with the addition of several creative studios and co-working spaces,
attracting artists and innovators to the area.

Economic Outlook

The national economy continues to demonstrate remarkable resilience, with recent reports
indicating that annualized fourth-quarter U.S. real GDP growth reached an impressive 4
percent in 2024, according to the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis. In 2023, Visual
Capitalist ranked Oklahoma #5 in the county with +5.3% for real GDP Growth Year-Over-Year.
This robust growth reflects strong consumer spending and business investment,
showcasing the underlying strength of the economy and its ability to adapt to changing
conditions.

While inflationary pressures have persisted, the Federal Reserve (FED) has taken proactive
measures to manage the economic landscape. Following a rate increase in December 2024,
which brought the federal funds target range to 5.25-5.5%, the FED's actions are aimed at
ensuring sustainable growth. The baseline forecast for 2025 anticipates a slight moderation
in annual real GDP growth, projected at around 2%. However, this is seen as a healthy
adjustment as the economy recalibrates to higher borrowing costs while maintaining a
positive trajectory.

Encouragingly, core inflation is expected to gradually decline, approaching the FED’s target
of 2% by mid-2025. This stabilization in inflation will create a favorable environment for
consumers and businesses alike, potentially allowing the FED to consider interest rate cuts
later in the year.

Overall, the outlook for the U.S. economy remains optimistic, with strong fundamentals
supporting continued growth. As the economy navigates these transitions, it is well-
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positioned for a robust recovery, paving the way for increased investment, job creation, and
enhanced consumer confidence in the months ahead.

Oklahoma County, specifically, is expected to continue significant progress in upcoming
years. The Center for Applied Economic Research (CAER) at Oklahoma State University
projects that Oklahoma will have experienced approximately 2% growth in nonfarm wage
and salary employment in 2025, slightly below the national average of 2.2%. Employment
growth for both Oklahoma and the nation is expected to slow to around 0.6% in 2025. This
anticipated slowdown reflects the cumulative effects of the Federal Reserve's interest rate
increases, which began in March 2022. Consequently, Oklahoma’s unemployment rate is
forecasted to rise to 3.8% by the fourth quarter of 2025, while the U.S. unemployment rate is
projected to reach 4.2% by the end of 2025.

In its latest Short-Term Energy Outlook published in May 2025, the U.S. Energy Information
Administration forecasted that the price of West Texas Intermediate oil will average around
$82 perbarrelin 2025. The Henry Hub cash market price of natural gas is expected to average
approximately $3.75 per million British Thermal Units (BTU) in 2025. These energy price
trends are anticipated to bolster employment in the energy sector throughout Oklahoma.

This is expected to be compounded by technology and innovation-driven businesses also
creating new job opportunities, with projections indicating a 12% increase in tech-related
jobs by 2026. Additionally, substantial investments in infrastructure, including a
$250,000,000 allocation for road improvements and public transit enhancements, along
with educationalinitiatives aimed at workforce development, are likely to support long-term
growth.

The OKC Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) is projected to see nonfarm wage and salary
employment grow by 2.5% in 2025 and 1% in 2026, surpassing both state and national
trends. Total wages and salaries in OKC are expected to increase by 5.5% in 2025 and 4.2%
in 2026, with the population forecast to rise by 1% in 2025 and 0.8% in 2026. Retail sales
subject to sales tax are anticipated to grow by 4.5% in 2025 and 4% in 2026.

From the second quarter of 2020 to the second quarter of 2025, house prices in the OKC
MSA increased by 35%, slightly below the national average increase of 39%. This slower
growth, despite robust population gains, reflects a favorable environment for housing
development.

In Oklahoma County, total employment is expected to rise by 2.2% in 2025 and 0.5% in 2026,
with total wages and salaries projected to increase by 5.4% in 2025 and 5.1% in 2026. The
county's population is forecasted to grow by 0.5% in 2025 and 0.4% in 2026.
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Overall, the OKC MSA and Oklahoma County economies are anticipated to continue
outpacing national and state growth rates, bolstered by successful Metropolitan Area
Projects (MAPS), a favorable housing market, low cost of living, and a strong aerospace
industry.

Major Budgetary Initiatives

For over a decade, the County has sought solutions to growing concerns about the condition
of the Oklahoma County Detention Center. The endeavor took off in 2015 with the formation
of the Greater Oklahoma City Chamber Criminal Justice Task Force, who partnered with the
Vera Institute of Justice to study the Detention Center and provide recommendations for
improvement. The report, released in December 2016, included recommendations to 1)
keep people charged with lower-level offenses out of the jail entirely and 2) create
alternatives to jail for people with mentalillness and/or substance use disorders.

In June 2024, the Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) voted to move forward with the
purchase of land on which a 60-bed behavioral health center (and later a new county jail)
will be constructed. The behavioral health center will function as an intervention for people
charged with lower-level offenses who are willing to participate in mental and behavioral
healthcare services. Those who successfully complete services will be eligible to have these
charges removed from their records. This project, supported by $40,000,000 in federal
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds, is in harmony with the recommendations of the
Vera Institute’s 2016 report. Construction of the behavioral health center is scheduled to
finish by December 2026.

Construction of a new detention facility remains a major budgetary initiative. In December
2021, the Board of County Commissioners voted to build a new facility at an estimated cost
of $300,000,000. On June 28, 2022, Oklahoma County voters approved a $260,000,000 bond
package. To date, $45,000,000 of the total bond package has been issued; however, present-
day estimates of the shortfall in the budget range from $500,000,000 to $700,000,000. The
project estimate has increased significantly due to a combination of factors, including
inflation, increased construction costs, and the need for a larger facility than initially
planned. The County continues to work to identify appropriate funding sources for increased
costs.

The County has leveraged Geographic Information Science (GIS), a cutting-edge mapping
and data analysis technology, since 1993. In 2020, County officials began investing in
expanding this technology to other offices, improving services to citizens by linking
information and resources from separate departments. In 2024, the County hired additional
support staff and moved towards designating an independent department responsible for
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providing County-wide GIS support. Having a central GIS program is expected to save the
County time and money that would otherwise be incurred from duplicating work across
departments.

Construction continued on a property jointly purchased in 2014 by the County, the City of
Oklahoma City, and the U.S. Air Force. The 158-acre lot hosts the KC-46A Sustainment
Complex where KC-46A tankers, used for aerial refueling and strategic military transport, are
stored and maintained. In 2019, the first hangar built specifically for the KC-46A Pegasus
refueling tank opened at Tinker Air Force Base. Ongoing construction includes a three-bay
hangar and paving work and is expected to continue through 2029. The addition of this
complex created an estimated 1,300 jobs within Oklahoma County.
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12



https://www.oscn.net/applications/oscn/deliverdocument.asp?id=68589&hits=328+327+317+316+305+304+57+56+45+44+4+3+




OKLAHOMA

Office of the State Auditor & Inspector

Cindy Byrd, CPA | State Auditor & Inspector

2300 N. Lincoln Blvd,, Room 123, Oklahoma City, OK 73105 | 405.521.3495 | www.sai.ok.gov

Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE OFFICERS OF
OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Oklahoma County, Oklahoma (the County), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of:

e The Oklahoma County Public Buildings Authority, which is both a major fund and 100 percent of
assets, net position, and revenues of the business-type activities;

e The Oklahoma County Finance Authority and the Oklahoma County Criminal Justice Authority,
which represent 100 percent of assets and revenues of the discretely presented component units;
and

e The Defined Benefit Retirement Plan of the Employees’ Retirement System of Oklahoma County,
which represents 5.26 percent of the assets of the fiduciary funds and 0.13 percent of the additions
to the fiduciary funds.

Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinions,
insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the above-mentioned entities, are based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the County, and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
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audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.



We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios — Defined
Benefit Retirement Plan, Schedule of Employer Contributions — Defined Benefit Retirement Plan,
Schedule of Investment Returns, Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios,
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — General Fund,
and the Notes to the Required Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our
audit and the report of the other auditors, the procedures performed as described above, and the reports of
the other auditors, the combining and individual fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory section but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we
do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based



on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our reported dated November 13,
2025 on our consideration of Oklahoma County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. That report will be issued under separate cover. The purpose of that report is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Oklahoma County’s internal control over
financial reporting or compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Oklahoma County’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

ClindsZapcd

CINDY BYRD, CPA
OKLAHOMA STATE AUDITOR & INSPECTOR

November 13, 2025
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the financial performance of Oklahoma County, herein
referred to as “the County,” provides an overview of the County’s financial activities for the
fiscal year ending on June 30, 2024. Please read it in conjunction with the financial
statements which immediately follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide Financial Analysis

OnJune 30, 2024, the County reported a total net position of $(143,445,078). Of this amount,
$122,198,059 is the net investment in capital assets, $78,832,593 is restricted for specific
purposes, leaving a negative unrestricted net position in the amount of $(344,475,730). The
negative amount of unrestricted net position is primarily the result of three long-term
obligations incurred that have no corresponding assets: (1) the issuance of long-term bonds
whose proceeds are planned to be used for the construction of a new County Jail facility, (2)
long-term obligations related to post-employment healthcare benefits for which no
advance-funded plan assets have been set aside, and (3) the total pension liability
exceeding fiduciary net position of the plan.

Fund Financial Analysis

Total fund balances for the County’s governmental funds amounted to $141,131,507 on
June 30, 2024, an increase of $15,145,466 from the prior fiscal year. Approximately
$110,015,639 of this total, or 78.0%, is either non-spendable, restricted, committed or
assigned for specific uses; and $31,115,868 or 22.0% of this total is unassigned in the
County’s General Fund and available to meet the County’s current and future needs.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The County’s investment in capital assets has increased by $5,830,099 or 4.6% from
$127,992,762 as of June 30, 2023 to $133,822,861 as of June 30, 2024. This balance as of
June 30, 2024, consists of $121,916,094 for the governmental activities and $11,906,767 for
the business-type activities.

The County’s total long-term obligations related to bonds, notes payable, leases, judgments
and compensated absences increased by $8,087,134. This increase was the result of an
increase in notes payable of $14,727,902, a decrease in lease obligations of $56,736, a
decrease in judgments payable of $1,393,109, and a decrease in compensated absences of
$33,453, and a decrease in government-type activities bonds payable by $5,157,470 due to
principal payments on bonds.

The County’s total liabilities decreased by $64,827,005, or 13.4%, and the liabilities for the
governmental activities decreased by $80,091,621, or 16.8%. Such variance in liabilities for
the governmental activities is primarily due to the decrease of $37,021,873 in total Other
Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability, along with a decrease of $44,467,949 in total
unearned revenue related to the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of this annual report consists of several parts: management’s
discussion and analysis (this section), independent auditor’s report, basic financial
statements, required supplementary information, and combining and individual fund
financial statements and supporting schedules.

The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government- wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.
The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the
County’s overall financial status. The financial statements also include notes that explain
some of the information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data. The
statements are followed by a section of other supplementary information that further
explains and supports the information in the financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the County as a whole. These
statements include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to accounting methods used by most private-
sector companies. The accrual basis of accounting and the economic resource
measurement focus is used, which requires that all assets and liabilities, both financial and
capital, short and long-term, are reported. All revenues and expenses incurred throughout
the year are reported, regardless of when cash is received or paid. The statement of net
position presents all of the government’s assets and liabilities, while the statement of
activities presents all revenues and expenses incurred in the year.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net position and how it has
changed. Net position, the difference between the County’s assets, deferred outflows,
liabilities, and deferred inflows, is just one of the ways to measure the County’s financial
health and position.

Increases or decreases in the County’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial
health isimproving or deteriorating, respectively. To assess the overall health of the County,
non-financial factors should be considered such as changes in the County’s property tax
base and the condition of the County’s roads and highways.

The government-wide statements of the County are divided into three categories:

e Governmental activities — Most of the County’s basic services are included here,
such as public safety, culture and recreation, roads and highways, and general
government. Ad valorem taxes, charges for services, and state and federal grants,
finance most of these activities.



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business-type activities — The County charges fees to customers to help it cover the
costs of certain services it provides. The Oklahoma County Public Buildings Authority
(OCPBA), a blended component unit, is reported as a business-type activity.
Discretely Presented Component Units — The County includes the Oklahoma County
Finance Authority and the Oklahoma County Criminal Justice Authority in its report
as discretely presented component units. Although legally separate, it would be
misleading or incomplete to exclude the component units from the County’s
financial report since the Board of County Commissioners exercises significant
control over the entities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County’s most
significant funds, not the County as a whole. Funds are groupings of related accounts that
the County uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular
purposes.

Some funds are required by state statutes, bond indentures, or other outside authorities.
Additional funds are established to control and manage money for particular purposes or to
show that it is properly using certain revenue sources for restricted purposes.

The County has three kinds of funds:

Governmental funds - Most of the County’s basic services are included in
governmental funds, which focus on (1) cash and other current financial resources
that can be readily converted to cash and used to pay obligations and (2) the
balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Governmental funds use
the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current financial resource
measurement focus. Under this basis of accounting and measurement focus,
revenues are recognized when cash is received during or soon after the end of the
year; expenditures are recognized when goods or services have been received, and
paymentis due during the year or soon thereafter. Consequently, the governmental
funds statements provide a short-term view that helps determine whether there are
more or less financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
County’s programs. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that
of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the
information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

Proprietary funds — Services for which the County charges customers a fee is
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds use the same basis of
accounting, and the same measurement focus as the government-wide

20



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

statements. Proprietary funds provide both long and short-term financial
information.

e Fiduciary funds — The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees’ pension
plan. It is also responsible for other assets that can only be used by the trust
beneficiaries. The Countyis responsible for distributing the assets reported in these
funds to the intended beneficiary. Fiduciary funds use the same basis of
accounting, and the same measurement focus as the government-wide
statements. All the County’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate
statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net
position. These activities are excluded from the County’s government-wide
financial statements because the County cannot use these assets to finance its
operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the County’s progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits through the Employee Defined Benefit
Retirement System, and its Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) obligation as well as
the General Fund Budget to Actual Comparison Schedule.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules are presented immediately
following the required supplementation information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of Oklahoma County, liabilities exceeded assets by
$143,445,078 on June 30, 2024; this is an improvement relative to liabilities exceeding
assets by $215,049,459 as of June 30,2023. At the end of the current year, the County’s net
position is reported as follows:

The largest portion of the County’s net position, $133,822,861, reflects its investment in
capital assets (i.e., land, buildings, equipment, infrastructure). The county uses these
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Oklahoma County's Net Position

June 30, 2024
Governmental % Inc. Business-Type % Inc. % Inc.
Activities (Dec.) Activities (Dec.) Total (Dec.)
2023
2024 2023 (restated) 2024 2023 2024 (restated)

Currentand other assets 243,236,337 263,817,164 -7.8% 38,747,008 19,840,411 95.3% 281,983,345 283,657,575 -0.6%

Capital assets, net 121,916,094 116,519,592 4.6% 11,906,767 11,473,170 3.8% 133,822,861 127,992,762 4.6%

Total assets 365,152,431 380,336,756 -4.0% 50,653,775 31,313,581 61.8% 415,806,206 411,650,337 1.0%

Deferred outflows of resources 86,477,287 121,218,193  -28.7% 1,047,129 1,163,477 -10.0% 87,524,416 122,381,670 -28.5%

Total current liabilities 112,090,520 147,373,500  -23.9% 1,532,800 1,032,921 48.4% 113,623,320 148,406,421 -23.4%

Total noncurrent liabilities 285,757,924 330,566,565  -13.6% 21,229,737 6,465,000 228.4% 306,987,661 337,031,565 -8.9%

Total liabilities 397,848,444 477,940,065  -16.8% 22,762,537 7,497,921 203.6% 420,610,981 485,437,986 -13.4%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Deferred inflows of resources 226,164,719 263,643,480  -14.2% - - 0.0% 226,164,719 263,643,480 -14.2%

Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - - 0.0% - - 0.0% - - 0.0%
Net position

Netinvestmentin capital assets 116,784,335 112,697,046 3.6% 5,413,724 5,138,725 5.4% 122,198,059 117,835,771 3.7%

Restricted 55,307,950 51,548,024 7.3% 23,524,643 19,840,411 18.6% 78,832,593 71,388,435 10.4%

Unrestricted (deficit) (344,475,730) (402,938,216) -14.5% - - 0.0% (344,475,730) (402,938,216)  -14.5%

Total net position (172,383,445) (240,028,595) * -28.2% 28,938,367 24,979,136 15.9% (143,445,078) (215,049,459) * -33.3%

*Refer to Note V. Other Information, G. Restatement for details pertaining to correction of 2023 error.

Another portion of the County’s net position, $78,832,593, represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of negative
unrestricted net position is $(344,475,730).

The amount of negative unrestricted net position reported for governmental activities as of
June 30, 2024 is primarily a result of the $41,233,515 outstanding bonds, whose proceeds
were used to acquire a capital facility that was transferred to the federal government, in
addition to the total OPEB liability of $233,605,717 that has no corresponding plan assets
held in trust. In both cases, the County holds long-term debt and obligations for which there
is no corresponding asset reported, thereby creating a negative amount reported for
unrestricted net position. All restrictions on net position are associated with state statutes.
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Oklahoma County's Net Position
June 30, 2024

Governmental % Inc. Business-Type % Inc. % Inc.
Activities (Dec.) Activities (Dec.) Total (Dec.)
2024 2023 (restated) 2024 2023 2024 2023 (restated)
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 29,684,935 $ 31,611,732 -6.1% $ 3,783,560 $ 3,867,463 -2.2% 33,468,495 35,479,195 -5.7%
Operating grants and contributions 41,642,605 23,495,058 77.2% - - 0.0% 41,642,605 23,495,058 77.2%
Capital grants and contributions 6,758,011 44,462,159 -84.8% 3,592,924 11,396,678 0.0% 10,350,935 55,858,837 -81.5%
General revenues:
Propery taxes 103,479,330 96,698,486 7.0% - - 0.0% 103,479,330 96,698,486 7.0%
Other revenues 46,645,711 17,718,276 163.3% 712,481 8,505 0.0% 47,358,192 17,726,781 167.2%
Total revenues 228,210,592 213,985,711 6.6% 8,088,965 15,272,646 -47.0% 236,299,557 229,258,357 3.1%
Expenses
General government 116,957,434 129,691,477 -9.8% 0.0% 116,957,434 129,691,477 -9.8%
Public safety 36,221,154 29,614,875 22.3% 0.0% 36,221,154 29,614,875 22.3%
Health and welfare 1,660,524 1,717,808 -3.3% 0.0% 1,660,524 1,717,808 -3.3%
Culture and recreation 71,718 63,043 13.8% 0.0% 71,718 63,043 13.8%
Roads and highways 3,534,921 14,047,098 -74.8% 0.0% 3,534,921 14,047,098 -74.8%
Economic development - - - 0.0% - - -
Interest on long-term debt 2,119,691 1,112,706 90.5% - - 0.0% 2,119,691 1,112,706 90.5%
Public Building Authoirty - - 0.0% 4,129,734 2,958,418 39.6% 4,129,734 2,958,418 39.6%
Total expenses 160,565,442 176,247,007 -8.9% 4,129,734 2,958,418 39.6% 164,695,176 179,205,425 -8.1%
Changes in net position before transfers 67,645,150 37,468,705 80.5% 3,959,231 12,314,228 -67.8% 71,604,381 49,782,933 43.8%
Special items - Transfer of operations - - 0.0% - - 0.0% - -
Net Transfers 657,030 -100.0% (657,030) -100.0% 0.0%
Change in net position 67,645,150 38,125,735 77.4% 3,959,231 11,657,198 -66.0% 71,604,381 49,782,933 43.8%
Beginning net position (240,028,595) (278,154,330) -13.7% 24,979,136 13,321,938 87.5% (215,049,459) (264,832,392) -18.8%
Ending net position $  (172,383,445) $  (240,028,595) * $ 28,938,367 $ 24,979,136 (143,445,078) (215,049,459) *

*Refer to Note IV. Other Information, G. Restatement for details pertaining to correction of 2023 error.

Governmental Activities

Net position for governmental activities increased by $67,645,150. A significant cause of
change was utilization of ARPA funds resulting in revenue recognition for amounts
previously considered to be deferred inflow of resources. The change in net position was
also impacted by a decrease of $37,021,873 in total OPEB liability, primarily attributable to
actuarial experience gains. These changes resulted in current year deferred outflow of
resources to decrease by $34,740,906 and the deferred inflow of resources to also decrease
by $37,216,064 for fiscal year 2024.The change in total OPEB liability also resulted in
recognition of OPEB benefit of $31,355,818 for fiscal year 2024 in comparison to
$19,234,568 for fiscal year 2023. There was a decrease of $5,157,470 in bonds payable as a
result of the payment of principal on outstanding debt, while also issuing an additional
$15,000,000 of general obligation bonds during the fiscal year. Other significant items that
resulted in a change in net position are as follows:

e Total revenues increased approximately by $14,224,881 or 6.6%. The more
significant changes were as follows:
* The overall net assessed value of Oklahoma County was $9,728,398,454, an
increase of 7.5%.
= Utilization of ARPA funds resulted in revenue recognition in the amount of
$14,892,110.
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Program Revenues Governmental Activities

120,000,000
100,000,000
80,000,000
60,000,000
40,000,000
S - l
B - a—t—p - ——
% @ 2] X X % O > &
«{b_‘_e OO@ S&@ Ooo s @'\06 R @ &Q% @Oo
S N & & b c® Qpé‘ \@fb‘ Q}gb(\
() < o] X
Q Q (] @ O & X o Y
Q€ S (‘& & \C’@ & ~° 5 N
@ y@@ {5;0 <&@ \(\r& & R
o0 O 2 R o & &
Q¥ R © ¢
Q\
&
o
m FY2024 m FY 2023
Program Expense Governmental Activities
140,000,000
120,000,000
100,000,000
80,000,000
60,000,000
40,000,000 -
20,000,000
) A— a— ‘ a— 7
X N %) o S X 2]
& s @ & & 2 S
S ) ¥ @ B Q o2
& <© S Q~\¢0 o N7
o® ¥ ) bqg) N Q@\e ’\O‘o
Q}fz} N ®®° o & Oo\'
& L > N4 o &
[©) Oo\' < oo(\ Q}Q)
< &

mFY 2024 mFY2023

Business-type Activities

Rental revenues decreased $83,903, or -2.2% from fiscal year 2023 to 2024. Operating
expenses increased by $681,037, or 24.2%, from fiscal year 2023 to 2024. Non-operating
expenses (interest payments) increased by $490,279, while the non-operating revenues
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

increased by $703,976 from earnings on investments compared to the prior year. There was
a decrease in capital contributions of $7,803,754 related to ARPA funds from Oklahoma
County. Cumulatively, this resulted in a $3,959,231 increase in net position at year-end.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

Governmental Funds

The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end
of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $141,131,507, an increase of $15,145,466 or 12.0%, in comparison
with the prior year. This increase was driven primarily by the utilization of ARPA funds that
resulted in revenue recognition.

Approximately 88.0% of the fund balance total for governmental funds, or $91,756,003, is
restricted, $4,071,251 is committed, $12,996,956 is assigned, and $1,191,429 is non-
spendable. The remaining fund balance of $31,115,868, or 22.0%, constitutes an
unassigned fund balance that is available to meet the County’s current and future needs.
The generalfund is the chief operating fund of the County. As a measure of the generalfund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance of $31,115,868 and
total fund balance of $37,695,693 to total fund expenditures. The unassigned fund balance
represents 22.0% of the total general fund expenditures, while the total fund balance
represents 26.7% of that same amount.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024, and June 30, 2023, revenues for the Governmental

funds were distributed as follows:
Governmental Funds - Revenue by Source

FY 2024 FY 2023 Increase/(Decrease)
Percent Percent %

Revenues By Source Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount Change
Property taxes 102,702,651 45% 96,182,329 45% 6,520,322 45%
Other taxes 1,062,171 0% 2,282,071 1% (1,219,900) -8%
Resale property income 9,892,096 4% 8,882,143 4% 1,009,953 7%
Charges for services 17,936,285 8% 20,929,402 10% (2,993,117) -21%
Intergovernmental 74,168,548 33% 72,441,675 34% 1,726,873 12%
Investment income 13,313,849 6% 7,921,448 4% 5,392,401 38%
Lease revenue 475,781 0% 475,781 0% - 0%
Miscellaneous 6,889,368 3% 2,971,804 1% 3,917,564 27%

Total revenues 226,440,749 100% 212,086,653 100% 14,354,096 7%
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
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Revenue by Source - Governmental Funds
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While revenues of the governmental funds increased by $14,354,096, or 6.8%, the individual
funds had more significant fluctuations as follows:

General fund revenue increased $20,815,979, or 17.3%. In addition to revenue
recognized for ARPA funds utilized in the current year, General fund property taxes
increased by $6,580,205, or 7.3%, as a result of collections in assessed property tax
values.

The Highway Cash fund revenue increased by $2,730,980, or 16.4%, primarily as a
result of an increase of $2,396,982 of miscellaneous revenues.

The ARPA fund experienced decreased revenue by $15,920,957 as a result of meeting
eligibility criteria for revenue recognition in the governmental fund by incurring
eligible expenditures during the fiscal year.

The Debt Service fund revenue decreased $1,285,931, or 15.9%, as a result of a
decrease in other tax receivable for the outstanding bond and judgment balance
obligations.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024, and June 30, 2023, expenditures for the
Governmental funds were distributed as follows:
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
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Governmental Funds - Expenditures by Function

FY 2024 FY 2023 Increase/(Decrease)
Percent Percent %

Expenditures by Function Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount Change
General government 121,709,786 58% 137,896,949 66% (16,187,163) -11.7%
Public safety 40,190,853 19% 32,649,995 16% 7,540,858 23.1%
Health and welfare 2,108,616 1% 2,215,625 1% (107,009) -4.8%
Culture and recreation 71,718 0% 63,043 0% 8,675 13.8%
Roads and highways 11,566,865 6% 11,598,967 6% (32,102) -0.3%
Debt Service 8,915,032 4% 7,808,968 4% 1,106,064 14.2%
Capital Outlay 25,462,514 12% 18,002,440 9% 7,460,074 41.4%

Total expenditures 210,025,384 100% 210,235,987 100% (210,603) -0.1%

Expenditures by Function - Governmental Funds
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Governmental fund expenditures decreased by $210,603, or 0.1%. The individual funds also
had significant fluctuations as follows:

e The General Fund expenditures increased $4,599,593, or 3.8%, as a result of an
overall increase of $1,660,369 in salaries and corresponding benefits paid primarily
as aresult of 2.5% merit-based salary increase in the FY 2023- 2024 budget.

e The County Jail Bond Fund had expenditures of $6,993,000 compared to $627,739 in
the prior year, a result of utilization of the County Jail Bond Funds during the fiscal
year.
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Proprietary Funds

The County’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Factors concerning the finances
of this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of business-type activities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The 2023-2024 budget was adopted under The County Budget Act in accordance with
Oklahoma state statute. The County Budget Act requires that the County adopts and
publishes aninitial budget before June 30th of each fiscal year, disclosing that the planis an
estimate and cannot be finalized until the ad valorem levies for the general fund and debt
service fund are presented for approval in September. Estimates of beginning unreserved
fund balance, and other operating revenues are also adjusted. Supplemental appropriations
are made in September based on the revised figures. With conservative revenue projections,
collections exceeded the budgeted revenues, enabling additional budget amendments later
in the year.

The total 2023-2024 General Fund adopted department budgets in June were $112,218,282,
and we finished the year with total department budgets of $117,501,176, for a total
departmental increase of $5,282,894. Transfers to other funds totaling $13,325,954 were
also budgeted. The changes in the budget were appropriated when the final ad valorem
values were certified in September. The more significant changes went to the following
departments/funds:

e A 4.0% increase in County salaries for a total of $1,660,369 was allocated to all
departments, specifically related to a 2.5% merit increase, plus elected official and
chief deputy pay increases.

e The total allocation for the Criminal Justice Authority as part of the General
Government budget was $32,960,022, matching last year’s allocation due to
adopted flat budget.

e The Sheriff’s Office budget was increased by $822,160 for additional expenses and
personnel expansion. The County adopts a balanced budget, including unassigned
fund balances in the sources as required by state statute.

The County adopts a balanced budget, including unassigned fund balances in the sources
as required by state statute. Since the actual revenues and expenditures for the General
Fund compare favorably with the General Fund budget for revenues and expenditures,
there is a positive ending fund balance.

Actual expenditures were $4,123,532 under budget. Expenditures were under budget
mainly as a result of $783,801 in General Government, $463,761 in Assessor Revaluation,
$258,045 in Court Clerk, $345,384 in County Audit, $18,370 in District Attorney — State,
$100,584 in Election Board, $247,694 in MIS, $125,820 in Juvenile Detention, $80,444 in
Juvenile Bureau, and $34,329 in Social Services that was budgeted but not spent.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

On June 30, 2024, the County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities
amounted to $121,916,094 (net of accumulated depreciation) and $11,906,767 (net of
accumulated depreciation) for its business-type activities. The County owns various
buildings in which county business is conducted. Infrastructure assets are recorded at a net
book value of $29,796,469 on June 30, 2024, comprising the largest class of assets.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e The Oklahoma Courthouse Elevator Modernization project was finalized in April
2024, at a cost of $1,811,870. ARPA funding supported the expansion of the
courtroom lobby at the Juvenile Justice Center, completed in June 2024, at a cost of
$655,800, as well as the radio communication infrastructure project for the
Oklahoma County Emergency Management Department, which enhanced public
safety and was completed in July 2023, at a cost of $2,373,768.

e In addition, the County initiated work on several major projects that remain in
progress as of June 30, 2024, including elevator modernization in the Annex Building,
Courthouse, Juvenile Justice Center, Investor’s Capital Building, and Metro Parking
Garage, with an estimated total cost of $11,700,000. Air quality improvements for the
Oklahoma County Detention Center are also underway, with an estimated cost of
$5,159,349.

For additional information on the county’s capital assets, see Note |lll.C

Long-term Obligations

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had an outstanding debt balance of
$57,953,697. This is comprised of $46,390,985 in general obligation bonds including
premiums, $68,489 in notes payable, $4,122,837 in judgments, $192,993 of lease
obligations, and $7,178,393 in compensated absences. The County’s debt obligations
decreased by $6,404,948 compared to the prior year, primarily due to the payoff of two
general obligation bonds.

Primary Government - Long Term Debt

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
General obligation bonds 46,390,985 52,078,994 - - 46,390,985 52,078,994
Notes Payable 68,489 132,965 21,914,728 7,120,000 21,983,217 7,252,965
Judgments 4,122,837 4,566,667 - - 4,122,837 4,566,667
Lease obligations 192,993 238,350 - - 192,993 238,350
Compensated absences 7,178,393 7,341,669 - - 7,178,393 7,341,669
Totals $ 5793697 $ 64,358,645 $ 21,914,728 $ 7,120,000 $ 79,868,425 $ 71,478,645
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On February 14, 2024, the Oklahoma Industries Authority, on behalf of the Public Buildings
Authority, based on voter approval, issued $15,000,000 in general obligation bonds for the
purpose of remodeling the Investor’s Capital Building facility to accommodate the District
Attorney’s office, renovating the Juvenile Justice Center courtrooms, renovating the County
Courthouse roof, and performing various Metro Parking Garage structural repairs.

State law limits the amount of general obligation debt the County can issue to 5% of the
assessed value of all taxable property within the County’s limits. For additional information
on the county’s debt activity, see Note lII.F.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The total assessed valuation of property in Oklahoma County increased approximately 7.5%
during FY 2023-2024.

The County’s primary general fund revenue source is property taxes with its second largest
single source being county clerk fees on documents filed in the Office of the County Clerk.
Together they accounted for approximately 82.6% of the total general fund revenue
collected in FY 2023-2024 and both sources are directly affected by the real estate
economy. The housing market continues to thrive in Oklahoma County, and assessed
values continued to increase.

On the expense side of the finances, Oklahoma County’s economy has recovered from the
previous declines due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the County’s economic growth is
expected to mirror the state and nation’s levels.

The County has a specific and aggregate stop-loss insurance policy for medical claims and
received reimbursement in the amount of $300,000 on its medical claims in FY 2023-2024
compared to $584,447 received in FY 2022-2023.

The County continues to implement cost saving options on employee health and
prescription plans. These cost saving options have helped the County stay well below the
national annual trend increases on health, prescription, dental, and vision plans.

The County purchased an aggregate stop loss policy for its employee medical benefits plan
as a safety net for the self-insured plan. The Budget Board voted to freeze the employee
premiums for the 2024 calendar year, even though the actuary projections called for an
increase in rates. Although the Criminal Justice Authority was created as a separate trust,
theiremployees remained on the Oklahoma County Self Insurance Health plan effective July
1, 2020, after they transferred from Oklahoma County.
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The County’s General Fund supplemental adopted budget for FY 2024-2025 is $147,940,023
which is $17,633,848 higher than the FY 2023-2024 final budget of $130,306,175. The FY
2023-2024 budget consists of $126,513,248 for department budgets and $21,426,775 in
transfers to other funds. An increase of $5,339,559 in budgeted property tax revenue and an
increase of $14,892,110 for Sheriff ARPA reimbursed funds account for the majority of the
projected increase. The General Fund beginning fund balance for FY 2024-2025 was
$15,164,103 more than the fund balance in FY 2023-2024. The increased fund balance along
with a $14,892,110 increase in revenue resulted in a net $22,438,599, or 17.9%, increase in
funds available to budget in FY 2024-2025. The FY 2024-2025 budget was balanced by
reviewing the estimate of needs of each individual department and allocating funds using
the prior year allocation breakdown. Then, in September, when annual property tax
revenues are collected, the County assesses the surplus revenue compared with budgeted
obligations and allocates additional funds to departments based on their estimate of needs.
During the budgeting process, an across the board 2.5% merit was approved for a total of
$1,219,450. The employer health premium charged to departments was increased by 3%.
General Government was increased $325,460 for insurance premiums, $42,097 for outside
legal support, and $34,890 for County occupied rent expenses. $449,000 was allocated to
the Court Clerk’s Office. $212,000 was allocated for the MIS department, $184,000 was
allocated to Facilities Management, $908,000 was allocated to the County Sheriff, $158,000
was allocated to the Juvenile Detention center, and $106,000 was allocated to Emergency
Management. $8,622,057 was placed in a reserve cost center to address shortfalls that may
occur during the budget year. Transfers for Employee Benefits, Workers Compensation and
Self-Insurance were increased by $1,396,775 and transfers to the Capital Projects Fund was
increased by $11,050,000.

REQUESTING THE COUNTY’S FINANCIAL INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, bondholders, and other
interested parties with a general overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the
County’s accountability for the money it receives. Complete financial statements of the
individual blended and discretely presented component units can be requested from the
Oklahoma County Clerk’s office. If you have questions about this report or need additional
financial information, you may write to the County Clerk’s Finance Division at 320 Robert S.
Kerr, Room 206 Oklahoma City, OK 73102-3430, submit an open records request at
oklahomacounty.org, or contact us by phone at (405) 713-1849 for assistance with
completing an open records request.
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Oklahoma County, Oklahoma
Statement of Net Position

As of June 30, 2024

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 217,326,383 $ 38,709,428 $ 256,035,811 $ 5,645,339
Investments 5,723,620 - 5,723,620 6,053,000
Property taxes receivable, net 6,285,190 - 6,285,190 -
Other taxes receivable 2,333,084 - 2,333,084 -
Interest receivable 313,267 - 313,267 159,200
Accounts receivable 7,269,848 37,580 7,307,428 1,864,700
Intergovernmental receivables 2,313,685 - 2,313,685 -
Lease receivable 479,831 - 479,831 -
Prepaid asset - - - 202,841
Inventories 1,191,429 - 1,191,429 407,927
Total Current Assets $ 243,236,337 $ 38,747,008 $ 281,983,345 $ 14,333,007
Noncurrent Assets:
Lease receivable - - -
Capital Assets:
Land, Construction in Progress, and Water Rights 52,171,444 3,735,454 55,906,898 -
Buildings, Improvements, Infrastructure, and Machinery & Equipment, 69,543,527 8,171,313 77,714,840 12,190,643
Leased assets, net amortization 201,123 - 201,123 -
Net Capital Assets 121,916,094 11,906,767 133,822,861 12,190,643
Total Noncurrent Assets 121,916,094 11,906,767 133,822,861 12,190,643
Total Assets $ 365,152,431 $ 50,653,775 $ 415,806,206 $ 26,523,650
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions - - - -
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 86,477,287 - 86,477,287 47,120,700
Deferred amount on refinancing 1,047,129 1,047,129 -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 86,477,287 $ 1,047,129 $ 87,524,416 $ 47,120,700
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and other current liabilities $ 12,178,934 $ 731,949 $ 12,910,883 $ 1,337,538
Accrued payroll liabilities - - - 433,730
Accrued interest payable 888,999 96,592 985,591 -
Compensated absences, current 5,303,012 5,303,012 750,000
Note payable, current 36,837 684,991 721,828 -
Lease obligation, current 111,313 - 111,313 79,910
Judgments payable, current 2,732,612 2,732,612 -
Claims liability, current 6,453,000 6,453,000 -
Bonds payable, current 5,157,470 5,157,470 -
Unearned revenue 79,228,343 19,268 79,247,611 -
Total Current Liabilities $ 112,090,520 $ 1,532,800 $ 113,623,320 $ 2,601,178
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences 1,875,381 - 1,875,381 979,787
Note payable 31,652 21,229,737 21,261,389 -
Lease obligation 81,680 - 81,680 273,066
Judgment payable 1,390,225 - 1,390,225 -
OPEB liability 233,605,717 - 233,605,717 15,816,352
Net pension liability 7,539,754 - 7,539,754 -
Bond payable-net 41,233,515 - 41,233,515 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities $ 285,757,924 $ 21,229,737 $ 306,987,661 $ 17,069,205
Total Liabilities $ 397,848,444 $ 22,762,537 $ 420,610,981 $ 19,670,383
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 261,474 - 261,474 -
Leases 475,782 - 475,782 -
Deferred amount related to OPEB 225,427,463 - 225,427,463 57,572,227
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 226,164,719 $ - $ 226,164,719 $ 57,572,227
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 116,784,335 $ 5,413,724 $ 122,198,059 $ 11,837,667
Restricted For:
General Government - resale property 8,424,555 - 8,424,555 -
General Government - record preservation 1,549,034 - 1,549,034 -
Public safety 9,005,034 - 9,005,034 -
Roads and highways 18,023,097 - 18,023,097 -
Economic development - - - -
Debt service 4,586,724 23,524,643 28,111,367 -
other purposes 13,719,506 - 13,719,506 -
Unrestricted (344,475,730) - (344,475,730) (15,435,927)
Total Net Position $ (172,383,445) $ 28,938,367 $ (143,445,078) $ (3,598,260)
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Oklahoma County, Oklahoma
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Program Revenues Primary Government
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Component
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Government Activities:
General Government $ 116,957,434 $ 17,874,947 $ 17,361,758 $ - $ (81,720,729) $ - $ (81,720,729) $ -
Public Safety 36,221,154 7,816,011 9,687,124 2,043,897 (16,674,122) - (16,674,122) -
Health and welfare 1,660,524 3,993,777 - - 2,333,253 - 2,333,253 -
Culture and recreation 71,718 - - - (71,718) - (71,718) -
Roads and Highways 3,534,921 - 14,553,920 4,714,114 15,733,113 - 15,733,113 -
Economic development - 200 39,803 - 40,003 - 40,003 -
Interest on long term obligations 2,119,691 - - - (2,119,691) - (2,119,691) -
Total Government Activities $ 160,565,442 $ 29,684,935 $ 41,642,605 $ 6,758,011 $ (82,479,891) $ - $ (82,479,891) $ -
Business-Type Activities:
Public Buildings Authority $ 4,129,734 $ 3,783,560 $ - $ 3,592,924 $ - $ 3,246,750 $ 3,246,750 $ -
Total Primary Government $ 164,695,176 $ 33,468,495 $ 41,642,605 $ 10,350,935 $ (82,479,891) $ 3,246,750 $ (79,233,141) $ -
COMPONENT UNITS
County Finance Authority $ 77,199 $ 642,718 $ - $ - $ 565,519
Criminal Justice Authority 37,869,777 4,086,563 34,300,030 - 516,816
Total Component Unit $ 37,946,976 $ 4,729,281 $ 34,300,030 $ - $ 1,082,335
General Revenue
Property Taxes (net of estimated uncollectibles of ($458,611) $ 103,479,330 $ - $ 103,479,330 $ -
Resale property income 9,892,096 - 9,892,096 -
Other taxes and fees 1,000,051 - 1,000,051 -
Grant revenue not restricted to a specific purpose 24,566,549 24,566,549
Unrestricted investment earnings 10,223,559 712,481 10,936,040 352,307
Miscellaneous 963,456 - 963,456 312,735
Transfers-in (out) - - - -
Total General Revenue and Transfers 150,125,041 712,481 150,837,522 665,042
Change in Net Position 67,645,150 3,959,231 71,604,381 1,747,377
Net Position - Beginning,restated (240,028,595) 24,979,136 (215,049,459) (5,345,637)
Net Position - Ending $ (172,383,445) $ 28,938,367 $ (143,445,078) $ (3,598,260)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 34



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024
American Other
Resale Rescue Plan County Jail Bond Debt Service Governmental Total Governmental
General Fund Highway Cash Property Act Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 36,305,758 $ 12,884,868 $ 6,611,145 $ 74,808,035 $ 42,317,756 $ 5,225,869 $ 39,172,952 $ 217,326,383
Investments 954,322 338,687 173,778 1,966,380 1,112,351 137,366 1,040,736 5,723,620
Property taxes receivable (net) 5,836,428 - - - 448,762 - 6,285,190
Other taxes receivable 557,219 - 1,744,741 - - 31,124 - 2,333,084
Interest receivable - 38,297 - - 185,925 22,937 66,108 313,267
Accounts receivable 2,188,181 - - - - - 5,081,667 7,269,848
Intergovernmental receivable 242,464 1,833,969 - - - - 237,252 2,313,685
Lease receivable 479,831 - - - - - - 479,831
Inventory 110,631 818,398 - - - - 262,400 1,191,429
Total assets $ 46,674,834 $ 15,914,219 $ 8,529,664 $ 76,774,415 $ 43,616,032 $ 5,866,058 $ 45,861,115 $ 243,236,337
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 2,336,009 $ 836,659 $ 105,109 $ 2,536,782 $ 3,301,971 $ - $ 1,988,081 $ 11,104,611
Benefits and claims payable 1,074,323 - - - - - - 1,074,323
Unearned revenue - - - 74,237,633 - - 4,990,710 79,228,343
Total liabilities 3,410,332 836,659 105,109 76,774,415 3,301,971 - 6,978,791 91,407,277
Deferred Inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue-Property Taxes 4,742,994 - - - - 373,295 - 5,116,289
Unavailable revenue-Intergovernmental 350,033 - - - - 17,040 355,575 722,648
Unavailblbe revenue - Settlements 4,382,834 4,382,834
Leases 475,782 - - - - - - 475,782
Total Deferred Inflows 5,568,809 - - - - 390,335 4,738,409 10,697,553
Fund balances:
Nonspendable $ 110,631 $ 818,398 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 262,400 $ 1,191,429
Restricted 14,259,162 8,424,555 - 40,314,061 5,475,723 23,282,502 91,756,003
Committed 4,071,251 - - - - - - 4,071,251
Assigned 2,397,943 - - - - - 10,599,013 12,996,956
Unassigned 31,115,868 - - - - - - 31,115,868
Total fund balances 37,695,693 15,077,560 8,424,555 - 40,314,061 5,475,723 34,143,915 141,131,507
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund
balances $ 46,674,834 $ 15,914,219 $ 8,529,664 $ 76,774,415 $ 43,616,032 $ 5,866,058 $ 45,861,115 $ 243,236,337

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 35



Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
As of June 30, 2024

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEETS TO
THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Total Fund Balance, Governmental Funds $ 141,131,507
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 121,916,094

Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds, but not deferred
in the statement of net position:

Unavailable revenue-property tax, other taxes and governmental 5,838,937
Unavailable revenue-settlements 4,382,834
OPEB related deferred outflows 86,477,287
Long-term liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are not due and payable in the current period and therefore, are not reported in the funds
Bonds payable, net unamortized premiums (46,390,985)
Notes payable (68,489)
Lease obligations (192,993)
Judgements payable (4,122,837)
Accrued compensated absences (7,178,393)
Accrued interest payable (888,999)
Claims liability, less amount report at fund level (6,453,000)
Pension related deferred inflows (261,474)
OPEB related deferred inflows (225,427,463)
Total OPEB liability (233,605,717)
(7,539,754)

Net pension liability

Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ (172,383,445)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 36



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Other Total
American County Jail Debt Service Governmental Governmental
General Fund Highway Cash Resale Property Rescue Plan Act Bond Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 96,171,074 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 6,531,577 $ - $ 102,702,651
Other taxes 993,746 - - - - 68,425 - 1,062,171
Resale property income - - 9,892,096 - - - - 9,892,096
Charges for services 8,012,543 - - - - - 9,923,742 17,936,285
Intergovernmental revenues 24,922,216 14,428,905 - 24,566,549 - - 10,250,878 74,168,548
Investmentincome 8,903,403 476,131 140,081 - 2,330,914 215,885 1,247,435 13,313,849
Insurance premiums - - - - - - - -
Lease Revenue 475,781 - - - - - - 475,781
Miscellaneous revenue 1,488,949 4,461,846 - - - - 938,573 6,889,368
Total revenues 140,967,712 19,366,882 10,032,177 24,566,549 2,330,914 6,815,887 22,360,628 226,440,749
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 92,256,049 - 6,903,359 16,336,935 - - 6,213,443 121,709,786
Public safety 26,943,380 - - - 6,993,000 - 6,254,473 40,190,853
Health and welfare 2,108,616 - - - - - - 2,108,616
Culture and recreation 71,718 - - - - - - 71,718
Roads and highways 1,953,499 7,965,497 - - - - 1,647,869 11,566,865
Debt service:
Principal 58,103 69,000 - - - 6,616,667 48,282 6,792,052
Interest 2,163 3,225 - - - 2,117,144 448 2,122,980
Capital outlay 986,724 9,840,781 66,072 8,229,614 - - 6,339,323 25,462,514
Total expenditures 124,380,252 17,878,503 6,969,431 24,566,549 6,993,000 8,733,811 20,503,838 210,025,384
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 16,587,460 1,488,379 3,062,746 - (4,662,086) (1,917,924) 1,856,790 16,415,365
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 1,470,825 - - - - - 4,371,910 5,842,735
Transfers to other funds (4,360,002) - (1,449,871) - - - (32,862) (5,842,735)
Debt proceeds - - - - - - - -
Lease proceeds 65,550 - - - - - - 65,550
Premium on debt issuance - - - - - - -
Sale of capital assets - - - - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,823,627) - (1,449,871) - - - 4,339,048 65,550
Proceeds from sale of land
Net change in fund balances 13,763,833 1,488,379 1,612,875 - (4,662,086) (1,917,924) 6,195,838 16,480,915
Fund balances - beginning, restated 23,931,860 13,589,181 6,811,680 - 46,311,597 7,393,647 27,948,077 125,986,042
Restatement - Error Correction (see Note IV.G.) - - - - (1,335,450) - - (1,335,450)
Fund balances - ending $ 37,695,693 $ 15,077,560 $ 8,424,555 $ - $ 40,314,061 $ 5,475,723 $ 34,143,915 $ 141,131,507

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. a7



Oklahoma County, Oklahoma
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 16,480,915
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures

over the life of the assets:
Capital asset purchases 15,256,282
Depreciation expense (9,816,785)
Capital assets disposals -
Capital assets donated to business-type activities

Governmental funds report bond issuance costs as expenditures and bond premiums as revenue while governmental activities report amortization
and interest expense to allocate those expenditures over the term of the bonds:
Amortization expense
Interest expense (184,718)

Governmental funds report revenue not collected within the availability period as Unavailable Revenue, but on the Statement of Activities
these revenues are recognized and the deferred inflow of resources is eliminated:

Property taxes 776,679
Intergovernmental revenue (1,099,493)
Settlement funds 2,092,655

Bond proceeds and bond premiums provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities
in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmenal funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position:

Change in claims liability (1,280,000)
Change in bonds liability 5,500,000
Note payable principal payment 64,476
Change in judgement liability 443,830
Bond premium 188,009
Change in lease liability 2,363

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources, and these are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds:

Compensated absences 163,275
OPEB liability and deferrals change 38,161,581
Net pension liabilities and deferrals 896,081
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 67,645,150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 38



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2024

Public Buildings

Authority
ASSETS
Current assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,709,428
Accounts receivable 37,580
Total current assets 38,747,008
Non-current assets:
Restricted assets:
Unamortized bond issuance costs -
Total noncurrent assets -
Capital assets:
Land 2,275,936
Buildings & Improvements 25,132,325
Equipment 852,991
Construction in progress 1,459,518
Less accumulated depreciation (17,814,003)
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 11,906,767
Total noncurrent assets 11,906,767
Total assets $ 50,653,775
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on lease refinancing $ 1,047,129
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities payable from
restricted assets:
Leases payable-current $ 684,991
Accounts payable 731,949
Accrued interest payable 96,592
Due to others -
Unearned revenue 19,268
Total current liabilities 1,532,800
Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital lease obligations 21,229,737
Total noncurrent liabilities 21,229,737
Total liabilities $ 22,762,537
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets $ 5,413,724
Restricted for debt service 23,524,643
Restricted for capital
Unrestricted -
Total net position $ 28,938,367

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Public Buildings

Authority
Operating revenues:
Rental $ 3,783,560
Insurance reimbursements
Total operating revenues 3,783,560
Operating expenses:
Costs of sales and services 1,986,851
Administration 465,591
Depreciation 922,709
Amortization 116,348
Total operating expenses 3,491,499
Operatingincome 292,061
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 712,481
Interest expense (221,281)
Amortization -
Trustee and other expenses (416,954)
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 74,246
Income before contributions and transfers 366,307
Capital Contributions-ARPA funds from Oklahoma County 3,592,924
Transfersin -
Transfers out -
Change in net position 3,959,231
Total net assets-beginning 24,979,136
Total net assets-ending $ 28,938,367

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Cost of reissuance

Capital Contributions-ARPA funds from Oklahoma County

Payment for Capital Assets
Net cash provided (used) by capital
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer from Oklahoma County
Transfer to Oklahoma County
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments
Beginning cash from operations
Ending cash from operations

Reconciliation of operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating Income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Amortization
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in prepaid rent
Increase (decrease) in payables

Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Public Buildings
Authority

$ 3,715,570
(1,544,725)
(465,591)

1,705,254

(655,000)
(136,318)
15,449,727
(416,956)
3,592,924
(1,356,304)

16,478,073

712,481

712,481

18,895,808

19,813,620

$ 38,709,428

292,061

922,709
116,348
(10,789)
(57,201)

442,126

1,413,193

$ 1,705,254




OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Defined Benefit
Pension Trust

Fund Custodial Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 6,393,315 $ 54,026,814
Property taxes receivable, net - 61,038,561
Due from other governments - 1,179,575
Interest receivable 66,034 -
Total assets $ 6,459,349 $ 116,244,950
Liabilities
Accounts payable - 26,293
Due to other governments - 68,474,876
Due to others - -
Total liabilities $ - $ 68,501,169
Net Position
Restricted for
Individuals, organization, other governments  $ 6,459,349 $ 47,743,781
Total Net Position $ 6,459,349 $ 47,743,781

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Defined Benefit

Pension Trust Total Custodial
Fund Funds
Additions
Contributions:
Employer $ 1,011,416 $ -
Investmentincome:

Interest 451,365 -
Property tax collections for other governments - 1,055,770,442
Other taxes and fees for other governments - 32,717,453
Property tax collections by individuals - 31,765
Held for individuals - 65,681,656

Total Additions $ 1,462,781 $ 1,154,201,317

Deductions
Benefits 1,240,220 -
Administrative expenses 18,459 1,790,079
Payments of property tax to other governments - 1,053,552,986
Payments of other taxes and fees to other governments - 31,091,790
Property tax payments to individuals - 3,126
Payments to individuals - 67,733,820
Total Deductions $ 1,258,679 $ 1,154,171,802
Change in Net Position 204,102 29,515

Net Position
Beginning of year 6,255,247 47,714,266
End of year $ 6,459,349 $ 47,743,781

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Note I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Oklahoma County are presented in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

A. Reporting entity:

Oklahoma County government is a subdivision of the state government; the powers exercised by the
County are those delegated by the State, as authorized by the Oklahoma Legislature and the
Oklahoma Constitution. The citizens of the County elect eight officials: an Assessor, County Clerk,
Court Clerk, Treasurer, Sheriff, and three County Commissioners. These elected officials are
responsible for the administration of services provided by their individual departments and serve on
public boards, including the Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) and Budget Board, to
collectively conduct County business.

The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities
for which the government is considered to be financially accountable and other organizations for
which the primary government is not accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Blended component units, although legally
separate entities, are part of the government’s operations. Discretely presented component units are
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is
legally separate from the government. Complete financial statements for each of the individual
component units may be obtained from the Oklahoma County Clerk's Finance Division.

1. Blended Component Unit

Oklahoma County Public Buildings Authority - The Oklahoma County Public Buildings Authority
(OCPBA) was created for the primary purpose of financing, operating, constructing and administering
any public works, improvements, or facilities in Oklahoma County. The OCPBA achieves its purpose
through the issuance of revenue bonds. The Board of County Commissioners serves as the Board of
the OCPBA. OCPBA is a public trust authority established March 4, 1968, under the provisions of
Title 60 Oklahoma Statute (O.S.) 8§ 176-180.4 as well as the Oklahoma Trust Act. The OCPBA Board
consists of the three County Commissioners that make up the BOCC.

During the fiscal year, the OCPBA collected rental revenues from the Metro Parking Garages,
Investor’s Capital Building, Lincoln Building property, and the Krowse Building. These revenues are
pledged for payment of the 2003 series lease revenue bonds. Revenue generated by the properties
are used to pay the principal and interest of the outstanding bonds and all direct expenses to manage
and operate said properties under the amended management agreement between the OCPBA and
Oklahoma County dated July 7, 2005. If any additional funds exist subsequent to the payment of
ongoing operating costs, a payment to cover the County’s overhead costs for supportive service will
be paid to the County in July. The contract will remain in effect for the life of the bonds issued by
OCPBA, unless modified in writing. The OCPBA issues a separate financial report that can be
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
Notes to the Financial Statements
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obtained by writing to the Oklahoma County Clerk’s Finance Division at 320 Robert S. Kerr, Room 206
Oklahoma City, OK 73102-3430, submitting an open records request at oklahomacounty.org, or
contacting us by phone at (405) 713-1849 for assistance with completing an open records request.

2. Discretely Presented Component Units

Oklahoma County Finance Authority - The Oklahoma County Finance Authority (OCFA) is a discretely
presented component unit that was created for the purpose of advancing, financing and developing
commercial and industrial projects, facilities, and housing within the County. The OCFA is a public
trust established pursuant to a trust indenture dated May 9, 1983. Under the trust indenture, the
OCFA was created for the use and benefit of Oklahoma County (the County) under the provisions of
Title 60 O.S. 88 176-180.4 and The Oklahoma Trust Act.

The OCFA is authorized, in the furtherance of public purposes, to issue revenue notes and bonds
that provide funds for the development of commercial and industrial projects to benefit the County.
Pursuant to the respective trust indentures governing each project, the notes or bonds payable of
each project do not constitute a debt, liability, or moral obligation of the State of Oklahoma or any
political subdivision thereof, nor does the indebtedness constitute a personal obligation of the
trustees of the OCFA. The OCFA has no taxing power.

The OCFA Board of Trustees is appointed by the BOCC. In addition, the BOCC ultimately approves
all note and bond obligations issued by the OCFA. The OCFA issues a separate financial report that
can be obtained by writing to the Oklahoma County Finance Authority at 105 N. Hudson, Suite 304,
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102 or calling (405) 232-2790.

Oklahoma County Criminal Justice Authority — The Oklahoma County Criminal Justice Authority
(OCCIJA) is a public trust established May 22, 2019, for the use and benefit of Oklahoma County
pursuant to the terms of Title 60 O.S. 88 176-180.4 as well as the Oklahoma Trust Act. The purpose of
the OCCJA includes but is not limited to: 1) conducting studies and preparing comprehensive plans
relating to the County’s criminal justice facilities, 2) owning, operating, and managing facilities used
for the temporary detention of adults and/or related facilities, 3) financing any and all programs and
facilities, 4) developing resources to promote, operate, finance, and develop jail facilities,
rehabilitation, mental health, and other diversion services, projects or facilities relating to the
operation of ajail facilities. The OCCJA is responsible for planning, developing, financing, renovating,
maintaining, operating, leasing, furnishing, and operating any facilities related to any of the foregoing
to such extent it may be considered a proper and lawful function of public trust entities within the
State of Oklahoma. The OCCJA is comprised of nine trustees: one member of the BOCC, the County
Sheriff, an appointee selected by each of the three district’s County Commissioners, and four
members appointed by the trustees.

3. Related Organizations
The following related organizations are excluded from the financial reporting entity because the
County does not exercise significant influence over their respective operations. Audited financial
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statements are available separately from the respective organizations. Related organizations are as
follows:

Oklahoma County Home Finance Authority — The Oklahoma County Home Finance Authority
(OCHFA) was created as a public trust on May 5, 1980, for the use and benefit of Oklahoma County,
to finance and provide housing facilities as set forth in the trust indenture. The County has no
significant influence over the management, budget, or policies of the OCHFA.

Oklahoma Industries Authority — The Oklahoma Industries Authority (OIA) was created as a public
trust on December 15, 1966, and amended May 4, 1981. OIA was created for the use and benefit of
Oklahoma County, to finance, promote, and aid in the development of industry and commerce as set
forth in the trust indenture. The County has no significant influence over the management, budget,
or policies of the OIA. On November 1, 1997, OlA issued $2,750,000 in lease revenue bonds to fund
the expansion of the Oklahoma County Juvenile Detention Center. In February 2001, the OIA issued
$4,765,000 in lease revenue bonds to fund heating, cooling, lighting, electrical, and plumbing
improvements to County buildings. On July 28, 2003, the authority issued lease revenue bonds in the
amount of $20,560,000 to be used by the Public Buildings Authority to 1) acquire, construct, and
equip a parking garage, 2) advance refund OCPBA Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1997, 3) make
improvements to the Metro Parking Garage, 4) make other County improvements, 5) fund capitalized
interest, 6) purchase surety bonds in lieu of funding a Debt Service Reserve Fund, and 7) pay certain
costs of issuing the bonds.

Oklahoma County Industrial Authority — The Oklahoma County Industrial Authority (OCIA) was
created as a public trust on May 5, 1982. It was created for the use and benefit of Oklahoma County
to finance, promote, and aid in the development of industry and commerce as set forth in the trust
indenture. The County has no significant influence over the management, budget, or policies of the
OCIA operation.

Oklahoma County Utility Services Authority — The Oklahoma County Utility Services Authority
(OCUSA) was created as a public trust on March 15, 1955. It was created to provide utility servicesin
unincorporated areas of Oklahoma County for the safeguarding of public health and welfare in these
areas. The County has no significant influence over the management, budget, or policies of the
OCUSA operation.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the County have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by GASB. They present the financial position
of the County and the various funds and fund types, the results of operations of the County, and the
various funds and fund types, and the cash flows of the proprietary fund. The financial statements
are presented as of June 30, 2024, for the period beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2024.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. Except forinterfund services provided and used, the effect of interfund activity has
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been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which are typically supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which
rely primarily on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from discretely presented component units.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

The County operates each of its three self-insurance activities separately. However, all three are
primarily funded through general fund revenues. Other revenue sources include premiums and
interest income. Employee benefits and workers’ compensation expenses and claims are a result of
the employment of workers hired to operate and manage the functions of the government. These
expenses are reported by the general fund. Gross revenues totaled $27,175,379 and gross expenses
totaled $37,426,862, resulting in net expenses of $10,251,483.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and the pension
trust fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified-accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they
are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within sixty (60) days of the end of the current fiscal period. While expenditures are generally
recorded when a liability is incurred, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
Property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and interest income associated with the current fiscal
period are considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
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current fiscalyear. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the County.

Governmental Funds

Generally accepted accounting principles set forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets,
liabilities, revenues or expenditures of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise
combined) for the determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are combined in a single

column in the fund financial statements. The County reports the following major governmental
funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. The fundis used to account
for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another fund. The Employee
Benefits, Worker’s Compensation, and Self-Insurance activities are presented as part of the General
Fund. Oklahoma County is self-insured, and the primary source of funding is from General Fund
revenue.

Highway Cash — The Highway Cash Fund accounts for state, local, and miscellaneous revenues and
expenditures for the purpose of constructing and maintaining county roads and bridges.

Resale Property — The Resale Property Fund accounts for collection of interest and penalties on
delinquent taxes as well as the expenditures incurred to sell abandoned property.

County Jail Bond Fund - The County Jail Bond Fund accounts for the bond funding and expenditures
intended for the construction of the new county jail facility.

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) -The County’s ARPA Fund was established to account for federal
dollars received from the U.S. Treasury for the purpose of supporting the public health response and
laying the foundation for a strong and equitable recovery following the Coronavirus pandemic.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that
are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

Other Governmental Funds - Other governmental funds, also known as Non-Major Funds, are used
to account for resources restricted or committed to specific purposes other than debt service or
capital projects, such as specific grants or taxes. Capital projects funds are used to account for
the acquisition or construction of major capital assets, like buildings or infrastructure.

Proprietary Fund

Proprietary funds account for business-like activities of the government. These funds are concerned
with activities financed by self-generated revenues. The County reports the following proprietary
fund:
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Public Buildings Authority — The Public Buildings Authority Fund accounts for the operations of the
OCPBA blended component unit.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by a governmental unit in a trustee capacity or
as an agent for individuals, private organizations, or other governments. The County reports the
following fiduciary funds:

Defined Benefit Pension Trust Fund — Is comprised of the Defined Benefit Pension Trust Fund,
through which the County holds and manages assets in a trustee capacity for its current and retired
employees. This fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds, which
accounts for the receipt, investment, and distribution of retirement contributions for employees
under the defined benefit plan.

Custodial Funds - Custodial funds are custodial in nature (i.e., assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. However, custodial fund assets and liabilities are
recognized using the accrual basis of accounting. The County has sixteen classifications of
custodial funds.

Revenue and Expense Classification

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on
capital. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferrals, and Net Position

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, amounts in demand deposits, and short-term
investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the County. The
majority of interest earned on investments is allocated to the general fund except for those
investments made specifically for the debt service fund, trust fund, and certain special revenue
funds as required by state statute for which investment income is allocated to the investing fund.
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2. Investments

The County adopted formal deposit and investments policies in June 2022. State statutes authorize
the County to adopt a written investment policy directing the investment of County funds and any
of the County’s public trusts or authorities. The County Treasurer manages the investments
according to the investment policy. The written investment policy authorizes the County to
purchase and invest in U.S. government obligations; certificates of deposit; savings accounts;
general obligation bonds issued by counties, municipalities, or school districts; money judgments
against counties, municipalities, or school districts; bonds and revenue notes issued by a public
trust when the beneficiary of the trust is a county, municipality, or school district; negotiable
certificates of deposit; prime bankers acceptances; prime commercial paper; repurchase
agreements, and money market funds. Investments are reported at fair value and certificates of
deposits are reported at carrying amount, which reasonably estimates fair value.

3. Property Taxes Receivable

All property taxes receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible payments.

Taxes are levied annually on October 1 with a due date of December 31. Taxpayers have an option
to pay amounts due in two installments: half by December 31 and remainder by March 31.
Delinquent tax payments are subject to interest assessments at an 18% annual rate. Major tax
payments are received in the months December through April. Delinquent tax payments are
received throughout the year. Governmentalfunds recognize revenue in the year levied to the extent
they are received within sixty (60) days of year-end. Current year tax collections for the year ended
June 30, 2024, were 96.09% of the tax levy.

The County's property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of January 1 of
the same year for all real and personal property located in the County, except certain exemptions.
Assessed values are established by the State Tax Commission and the State Equalization Board. A
revaluation of all property is required once every five years. Oklahoma County’s assessed property
value as of July 26, 2023, was $9,728,398,454 after excluding homestead and veteran exemptions
of $239,422,561.

The County Excise Board levied 10.35 mills for General Fund operations, 2.59 mills for the City-
County Health Department, 5.20 mills for the Metropolitan Library Commission and 0.71 mills for
Debt Service.

In addition, the County collects ad valorem taxes assessed by cities, towns, and school districts,
and apportions the collected ad valorem taxes to the appropriate taxing units.

On the government-wide financial statements, property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal

year in which they are levied. On the fund financial statements, property tax revenues are deferred
if not received within 60 days after fiscal year end.
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4. Receivables and Unavailable Revenues

Receivables consist of intergovernmental receivables that are primarily amounts due from federal
grants, and accounts receivable are primarily comprised of various charges for services, fees and
employee health premiums earned by fiscal year end and not yet collected.

Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are
earned but not collected within 60 days of year end and therefore not considered to be available to
liguidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components
of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Governmental Funds: Unavailable
Property taxes receivable - General Fund $4,742,994
Property taxes receivable — Debt Service Fund 373,295
Intergovernmental receivable- General Fund 350,033
Intergovernmental receivable — Debt Service Fund 17,040
Grant funds - Sheriff Grant Fund 206,775
Grant funds — County Bonds 2008 Fund 148,800
Accounts receivable — Settlement Fund 4,382,834
Total deferred for governmental funds $10,221,771

5. Inventories

Inventory in governmental funds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption stated on a
first-in first-out basis. They are recorded at cost, as an expenditure, at the time individual items are
purchased. Unconsumed inventories in governmental funds are equally offset by non-spendable
fund balance, which indicates that portion of fund balance is not in spendable form.

6. Due to Other Taxing Units/Others

Oklahoma County acts as a collecting agent for many other governmental entities. The County is
responsible for assessing ad valorem taxes, sending out statements, collecting the tax and
distributing collections to the appropriate recipients. These recipients include, but are not limited
to, schools, cities, the County Health Department, the City/County Library, Oklahoma County career
tech schools and colleges. All unremitted collections on hand on June 30 are reported as “due to
other taxing jurisdictions,” and un-apportioned collections held in depository accounts are reported
as “due to others” within County custodial funds.

7. Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns both in the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by Oklahoma County as assets with aninitial, individual costs
exceeding $5,000. Such assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded
atacquisitionvalue at the date of donation. Supplies and materials purchased as part of construction
projects expected to exceed the capitalization threshold are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Land, land improvements, and artwork are not depreciable assets. The costs of repairs that do not
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add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. All periodic
maintenance costs are expensed in the period incurred.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the assigned useful lives as
follows:

Assets Years
Buildings 40
Building improvement 30-40
Infrastructure-Roads 10
Infrastructure-Bridges 50
Equipment and automobiles 5-15
Furniture and Fixtures 10

Leased and Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA) assets are
amortized over the evaluated term of the associated contract.

8. Compensated Absences

Accrued annual leave is payable upon layoff, resignation, retirement, or death. Amounts of vested
or accumulated annual leave are reported in the government-wide statements and not in the
governmental fund statements as the liability is not expected to be paid from current resources. A
liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured as a result
of employee resignations and retirements. On June 30, 2024 the accrued liability for annual and
compensatory leave time was $7,178,393. There is no limitation on accruing unused sick leave.
Sick leave does not vest, and therefore, is not reported. Unused sick leave shall contribute toward
retirement eligibility for vested employees, 20 days being equivalent to one month. The maximum
allowable is 130 days, which would allow an additional year.

9. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities or business-type activities columns of the government-wide statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs
are reported as expense in the period incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.

10. Defined Benefit Retirement Plan

The financial statements of the County’s Defined Benefit Plan are prepared under the accrual
method of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due. Benefits and
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.
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Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires the plan trustees to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

The Plan’s investments are reported at fair value as of the date of the balance sheet. If available,
quoted market prices are used to value investments. The amounts shown for securities that have
no quoted market price represent estimated fair value. Purchases and sale of securities are
recorded on a settlement date basis. Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis.

Pension

For purposes of measuring pension related balances (i.e., net pension liability, deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense), net position of the
Employees’ Retirement System of Oklahoma County and additions to/deductions from the
System’s net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
Employees’ Retirement System of Oklahoma County. Accordingly, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms.

11. Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows and deferred inflows are the consumption and the acquisition, respectively, of
net position by the County that is applicable to a future reporting period. The County’s deferred
outflows of resources were comprised of changes related to pensions that are applicable to future
reporting periods. The County’s deferred inflows of resources were comprised of the difference
between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions in Other Post-Employment
Benefits (OPEB) obligations applicable to future reporting periods.

Lease-related amounts are recognized at the inception of leases in which the County is the lessor
and are recorded in an amount equal to the corresponding lease receivable plus certain additional
amounts received from the lessee at or before the commencement of the lease term that relate to
future periods, less any lease incentives paid to, or on behalf of, the lessee at or before the
commencement of the lease term. The inflow of resources is recognized in a systematic and rational
manner over the term of the lease.

12. Internal Balances

Amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund receivables and payables are
eliminated in the entity-wide governmental and business type activities columns of the Statement
of Net Positions, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-
type activities, which are presented in internal balances.

Due To/Due From - Amounts owed to one fund or component unit by another which are due within
one year are reported as due to other funds or component units.
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13. Fund Balance and Net Position

As prescribed by GASB Statement No. 54, governmental funds report fund balance in
classifications based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor constraints on
the specific purposes for which amounts in the funds can be spent. Fund balances are classified
by level of constraint as follows:

Non-spendable Fund Balance - includes amounts that are 1) not in spendable form, or 2) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable form” criterion includes
items that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example: inventories, prepaid amounts,
and long-term notes receivable.

Restricted Fund Balance - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by external resources providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance - includes amounts that can be used for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the BOCC or Budget Board by resolution. Commitments may be
changed or lifted if the board again takes formal action by resolution.

Assighed Fund Balance — Comprises amounts intended to be used by the County for specific
purposes that are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by motion of the BOCC or
Budget Board pursuant to state law by action other than resolution.

Unassighed Fund Balance - represents a fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds
and has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund.
The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount.
However, in governmental funds other than the General Fund, if expenditures incurred for specific
purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes, it
could become necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance in that fund.

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in
multiple fund balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of 1) restricted, 2)
committed, 3) assigned, and 4) unassigned.

The government-wide and the proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position
presentation. Net positions are categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted, and
unrestricted.

e Netinvestment in capital assets groups all capital assets into one component of net position.
Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.

e Restricted Net Position reflects net positions that are subject to constraints either by externally
imposed by creditors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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e Unrestricted Net Position represents the residual net positions of the County that are not
restricted for any project or purpose.

When both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available for use, it is the County’s policy
to use restricted net position or resources first.

Note Il. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetary Information

Guidelines for the County Budget Act are set outin Title 19 Section 1401 of Oklahoma Statutes. At
least thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, a budget for each fund of the county
for which a budget is required shall be completed by the Budget Board. Each budget shall provide
a complete financial plan for the budget year. The budget format shall be as prescribed by the
Oklahoma State Auditor and Inspector. The format shall contain at least the following in tabular
form for each fund, itemized by department and account within each fund:

1. Actual revenues and expenditures for the immediate prior fiscal year;

2. Estimated actual revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year; and

3. Estimated revenues and proposed expenditures for the budget year.

The Budget Board of Oklahoma County complies with the purpose of the Budget Act, which
includes the following:

A. Establish uniform and sound fiscal procedures for the preparation, adoption, execution and
control of budgets.

B. Enable counties to make financial plans for both current and capital expenditures and to
ensure that their executive staffs administer their respective functions in accordance with
adopted budgets.

C. Make available to the public and investors sufficient information as to the financial
conditions, requirements and expectations of the county government.

D. Assist county governments to improve and implement generally accepted accounting
principles as applied to governmental accounting, auditing and financial reporting, and
standards of governmental finance management.

Each fund's appropriated budget is prepared on a detailed line-item basis. Revenues are budgeted
by source. Expenditures are budgeted by department and character (salaries and wages, fringe
benefits, travel, operation, capital and debt service), which constitutes the legal level of control.
Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at this level. All budget revisions at this level are
subject to authorization by the department head and approval by the Budget Board. All budget
revisions are subject to final review by the Budget Board. Revisions to the budget were made
throughout the year.

The legal level of control is that expenditures budgeted in each fund may not exceed budgeted
revenues, including fund balance, for the fund. Once approved, the Budget Board may amend the
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legally adopted budget when unexpected modifications are required in estimated revenues and
appropriations.

B. Legal and Contractual Obligations

Under Oklahoma Law, the County may not obligate funds that require income and revenue from
future fiscal years without voter approval, such as with the issuance of general obligation bonds.
Alllease and lease-purchase agreements, whether or not they are capitalized, must be re-approved
at the beginning of each fiscal year. Federal and State grant revenues and expenditures are
accounted for in accordance with applicable contract provisions. General obligation bonds,
judgments and related interest are levied for and paid in accordance with appropriate State laws.

C. Continuous Inventory

According to guidelines established by Title 19 Section 178.1 of Oklahoma statutes, the County
maintains a continuous asset inventory of all assets purchased with a cost of $500 or more. These
items are generally purchases from the capital outlay accounts and recorded at cost.

Note lll. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Deposits and Investments

The County uses a pooled cash concept for deposits and investments except for the pension trust,
and certain custodial funds. Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as
well as short-term investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the
County. All cashis pooled for operating and investment purposes and each fund has equity in the
pooled amount. For reporting purposes, cash and investments have been allocated to each fund
based on that fund's equity in the pooled amount.

Investments
As of June 30, 2024, the County had the following investments:

Primary Government Weighted Average Credit Fair Value
Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (Years) Ratings Category
Certificates of deposit $8,083,250 .94 N/A N/A
Total investments $8,083,250

Portfolio weighted average maturity .94

Fiduciary Funds: Weighted Average Credit Fair Value
Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (Years) Ratings Category
Certificates of deposit $250,000 .09 N/A N/A
Insured cash sweep 4,156,000 - N/A N/A
Judgments 1,947,837 1.9 N/A Level lll
Total investments $6,353,837

Portfolio weighted average maturity 0.95

57



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

The County categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted account principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of an asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs.

Level 3 inputs were used for judgments purchases from other governmental agencies that are not
actively traded, and significant other observable inputs are not available. Judgments are valued at
$1,947,837 using the cost approach on June 30, 2024.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County may not
be able to recover its deposits. The County’s policy requires uninsured deposits with banks to be
110 percent secured by collateral valued at fair value. As of June 30, 2024, the County’s bank
balance of $277,496,034 and its blended component unit (OCPBA) bank balance of $38,709,428
are fully insured or collateralized with securities held by the County or its blended component unit,
or their agents in their respective names.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. In accordance with the adopted investment policy, the County manages its exposure
to declines in fair value by following three benchmarks in investing funds: safety, liquidity and rate
of return. The investment maturity is set up to meet projected cash flow needs and money market
investments are available for funds making frequent deposits and expenditures.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligation. Investing is performed in accordance with investment policies adopted by the County
complying with Oklahoma State statutes. Investments are limited to the following: 1) Direct
obligations of United States government, its agencies or instrumentalities to the payment of which
the full faith and credit of the government of the United states is pledged, or obligations to the
payment of which the full faith and credit of the State of Oklahoma is pledged; 2) Obligations of
the Government National Mortgage Association, Federal National Mortgage Association, or Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or any Federal farm credit bank, Federal land bank, or Federal
home loan bank notes or bonds; 3) Collateralized or insured certificates of deposit; 4) Repurchase
agreements that have underlying collateral of direct obligations or obligations of the United States
government, itagencies and instrumentalities; 5) Money market funds and repurchase agreements
which investments consist of the authorized investments of United States government agency
obligations with restrictions as specified in state law; 6) State and Local Government Series; and
7) County direct debt obligations for which an ad valorem tax may be levied, rendered against the
county by a court of record.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty,

the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments. County investment policy
provides that investment collateral is held by a third-party custodian with whom the County has a
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current custodial agreement in the County’s name or be held in the name of both the County and
financial institution by the Federal Reserve Bank servicing Oklahoma.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Weighted Average Credit
Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (Years) Ratings
Certificates of deposit $6,053,000 0.47 N/A

Interest rate risk. The Authority’s investment policy limits the duration of certificates of deposit or
other fixed-income securities to a maximum maturity from the date of purchase to six months.

Investment Credit risk. The Authority has no formal policy limiting investments based on credit
rating but discloses any such credit risk associated with their investments by reporting the credit
quality ratings of investments in debt securities as determined by nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations and agencies as of yearend. Unless there is information to the contrary,
obligations of the U.S. government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are
not considered to have credit risk and do not require disclosure of credit quality. The Authority
invests in certificates of deposit of local financial institutions, and that all deposits and investments
in excess of amounts covered by federal deposit insurance, be fully collateralized, with a pledge of
the U.S. Treasury obligations, by the entity holding the deposit or investments. On June 30, 2024,
all the Authority’s investments are in certificates of deposit.

Custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Authority’s deposit policy for custodial credit
risk is that all deposits shall either be insured by Federal Deposit Insurance or collateralized by
securities held by the cognizant Federal Reserve Bank, orinvested in U.S. Government obligations,
in the Authority’s name. On June 30, 2024, the Authority’s deposits were not exposed to custodial
credit risk since all deposits were either insured by Federal Deposit Insurance or collateralized by
securities held in the Authority’s name.

B. Property Taxes Receivable
The following is a summary of property and other tax amounts shown as receivable, and amounts
considered uncollectible by the taxing unit. In accordance with state statute, all tax liens on real
and personal property are extinguished upon the expiration of seven (7) years. Therefore, the
receivables date back to 2018, and the total outstanding represents less than 1% of the original tax
levies for the same time period.
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Total Outstanding at

Amount Considered

Amount Shown as Net

June 30, 2024 Uncollectible Receivable
Governmental Funds $6,808,016 ($522,826) $6,285,190
Custodial Funds:
Health Department 1,523,064 (7,615) 1,515,449
Cities and library 9,855,126 (49,276) 9,805,850
Schools 49,967,097 (249,835) 49,717,262
Fiduciary Funds Total 61,345,287 (306,726) 61,038,561
Total $68,153,303 $(829,552) $67,323,751
C. Capital Assets
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2024
Primary Government
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $19,003,039 $- $- $19,003,039
Artwork 24,500 - - 24,500
Construction In Progress 22,668,675 10,534,359 (59,129) 33,143,905
Total capital assets, not being depreciated: $41,696,214  $10,534,359 $(59,129) $52,171,444
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings & building Improvements $103,683,974 $312,792 $- $103,996,766
Machinery and equipment 42,677,987 2,579,094 (1,953,204) 43,303,877
Infrastructure 90,359,468 1,975,137 (862,050) 91,472,555
Total capital assets being depreciated: $236,721,429 $4,867,023 $(2,815,254) $238,773,198
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & building Improvements $(72,569,890)  $(2,665,558) $- $(75,235,448)
Machinery and equipment (31,435,529) (2,767,906) 1,885,298 (32,318,137)
Infrastructure (58,136,749) (4,401,387) 862,050 (61,676,086)
Total accumulated depreciation (162,142,168) (9,834,851) 2,747,348 (169,229,671)
Total capital assets being depreciated net: 74,579,261 (4,967,828) (67,906) 69,543,527
Right to Use Leased Assets:
Intangible Building - - - -
Intangible Equipment 433,083 65,550 - 498,633
Total Leased Assets being amortized: 433,083 65,550 - 498,633
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Intangible Building - - - -
Intangible Equipment (188,966) (108,544) - (297,510)
Total accumulated amortization (188,966) (108,544) - (297,510)
Total Lease Assets being amortized net: 244,117 (42,994) - 201,123
Governmental activities capital assets net: $116,519,592 $5,523,537 $(127,035) $121,916,094
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Business-type activities

Capital assets not being depreciated: June 30, 2023 Increases Decreases June 30, 2024

Land $2,275,936 - - $2,275,936
Construction In Progress 147,860 1,311,658 - 1,459,518
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,423,796 1,311,658 - 3,735,454

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings & building improvements 25,132,325 - - 25,132,325
Machinery and equipment 841,728 11,263 - 852,991
Total capital assets being depreciated 25,974,053 11,263 - 25,985,316

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Accumulated depreciation (16,924,679) (889,324) - (17,814,003)
Total capital assets being depreciated net 9,049,374 (878,061) - 8,171,313
Business-type activities capital assets net $11,473,170 $433,597 - $11,906,767

Depreciation & Amortization expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary
government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $1,733,025
Public safety 2,403,062
Health and welfare 6,449
Education -
Roads and highways 5,692,315
Total depreciation and amortization expense-

governmental activities $9,834,851

Business-type activities:

Public Building Authority 922,709
Total depreciation expense-business-type activities $922,709
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D. Fund Transfers

Transfers for the year ended June 30, 2024, consist of the following amounts:

TRANSFERS OUT
GENERAL RESALE OTHER PUBLIC
FUND ARPA FUND PROPERTY GOVERNMENTAL BUILDING
TRANSFERS IN FUND FUNDS AUTHORITY
Primary Government:
Major Funds:

General Fund $1,470,825 | $(4,360,002) - $(1,449,871) - -
Sub-total Major Funds 1,470,825 (4,360,002) - (1,449,871) - -
Nonmajor Funds:

Sub-total Nonmajor Funds 4,371,910 - - - (32,862) -
Total Governmental Activities 5,842,735 (4,360,002) - (1,449,871) (32,862) -
Business-Type Activities:

Public Building Authority - - - - - -

Total Business-type Activities - - - - - -
Total Primary Government $5,842,735 | $(4,360,002) - $(1,449,871) $(32,862) -
Reconciliation to the Statement of Activities:

Transfers Transfers Net
In Out Transfers
Governmental Funds $5,842,735  $(5,842,735)
Proprietary Fund - -
Total $5,842,735  $(5,842,735)

A transfer of $1,449,871 was made from the resale property fund to the general fund to fulfill
statutory requirements. Transfers in the amount of $860,000 were made from the general fund to
the capital projects regular fund that were two separate transfers in the amounts of $360,000 (GF
Cash Transfer for FY23-24) and $500,000 (Judicial Chamber Security Project) from the General

Fund Budget.

E. Leases
County as Lessee

The County, as a lessee, has entered into lease agreements involving building and equipment.

The total of the County’s lease assets are recorded at a cost of $498,633, less accumulated
amortization, resulting in a $201,123 net position.
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The future minimum lease payments are as follow:

Year Ended June 30: Principal Interest
2025 $111,313 $2,117
2026 33,251 1,309
2027 25,069 770
2028 15,671 350
2029 7,303 49
2030 386 -
Total $192,993 $4,595

County as Lessor

The County as a lessor, has entered into lease agreements involving a building space. The total
amount of inflows of resources, including lease revenue and interest revenue recognized during the
fiscal year was $480,212.

F. Long-term Debt

1. Governmental Activities

General Obligation Bonds

On August 1, 2008, the County issued $61,500,000 of general obligation bonds to finance the
purchase of the former General Motors Assembly Plant, to provide funds for the capital
improvements for the Oklahoma County courthouse and annex buildings, and to improve and
mitigate natural hazard damage and impact, including but not limited to flooding in East Central
Oklahoma County in and around Crutcho Creek, and in Northwest Oklahoma County in and around
Deer Creek area. In April 2017, Oklahoma County refinanced its General Obligation bonds for the
purpose of reducing the interest costs on the debt and to achieve an economic savings. Over the
life of the bonds, the refinancing will result in a debt service cash flow savings to Oklahoma County
of $1,141,589, a gross debt service present value savings of $1,082,057, and a net economic
present value benefit of $1,087,537 after considering use of existing debt service funds. The
remaining principal balance of the Series 2017A bond was $29,940,000 and the interest balance of
$4,006,498 was payable semi-annually August 1 and February 1, with interest rates that vary from
4.0%t05.0%. The bonds bear semi-annualinterest (payable August 1, and February 1 of each year).
The Bonds will be paid from ad valorem taxes levied and assessed on behalf of the Issuer and
deposited to its Sinking Fund. The bonds were paid in fullin fiscal year 2024.

On September 1, 2014, the County issued $10,000,000 of general obligation bonds to help finance
the purchase of the BNSF rail yard. This bond is the remaining $10,000,000 of the $71,500,000
approved by voters in 2008. The proceeds of the bond were transferred to the Oklahoma Industries
Authority to purchase the land and therefore reported as an economic development expense to the
County in the amount of $10,000,000. The land being purchased is adjacent to Tinker Air Force and
north of the old General Motors plant that was purchased by the County in 2008. The total cost of
the land is $44,000,000 and will be a joint purchase by the County, the City of Oklahoma City and
the U.S. Air Force. The land will be used by Tinker Air Force to build maintenance hangars for the
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new KC46-A advanced tankers and will add an additional 1,321 jobs. As aresult of a state incentive
called the Quality Jobs Act, there will be a credit for those quality jobs and Oklahoma County will
get repaid for approximately 95% of the cost over the life of the bonds. The interest rate on the bond
is 2.00 percent and the maturity is September 1, 2023. Bond principal payments were $1,250,000
beginning on the 1st day of September 2016 in each of the years 2016 through 2023 with the final
payment due September 1, 2023. Interest shall be payable on the 1st day of March of each year,
beginning on the 1st day of March 2016. The bonds were paid in full in fiscal year 2024.

On May 1, 2023, the County issued $45,000,000 of general obligation bonds to finance the
construction of a new Oklahoma County Jail facility. The bond issue included a net premium of
$1,574,700 and the interest rate on the bond is 3.50 percent with maturity of 2033. Bond principal
payments are $5,000,000 beginning on the 1st day of May 2025 in each of the years 2026 through
2033 with the final payment due May 1, 2033. Interest shall be payable on the 1st day of November
of each year, beginning on the 1st day of November, 2024. Summary of debt service requirements
to maturity is as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total Interest
2025 $5,000,000 $1,737,500 $6,737,500 4.00%
2026 5,000,000 1,537,500 6,537,500 4.00%
2027 5,000,000 1,337,500 6,337,500 4.00%
2028 5,000,000 1,137,500 6,137,500 4.00%
2029 5,000,000 937,500 5,937,500 4.00%
2030-2033 20,000,000 1,800,000 21,800,000 4.00-3.50%
Total Payments $45,000,000 $8,487,500 $53,487,500

Notes Payable

Oklahoma County has entered into various agreements for financing the acquisition of highway
equipment. Oklahoma law prohibits the County from entering into contracts of this nature longer
than one year and as such has included language for non-appropriation of funds. The unpaid
portion of these agreements have been reported as another non-current liability in the Statement
of Net Position at an amount equal to the present value of all remaining payments to maturity.

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these note payables, and
the present value of the net minimum payments reported in the government-wide statements.

Fiscal year ending June 30, Principal Interest
2025 $36,837 $4,442
2026 31,652 3,183

Total Payments $68,489 $7,625
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2. Business Type Activities

Notes Payable (Leases Financing Obligations)

On October 1, 1997, OCPBA issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 in the
amount of $6,800,000 with interest rates that vary from 4% to 4.9%. The proceeds of the bond issue
were used to purchase computer equipment, software, hardware, training facilities and related
costs to computerize the Oklahoma County government and provide needed repairs and
improvements to property of OCPBA. The bonds are secured by the OCPBA property and gross
revenues and matured October 1, 2013. Additionally, OCPBA purchased an insurance policy
guaranteeing payment of the bonds.

The Oklahoma Industries Authority issued $20,560,000 of lease revenue bonds on July 28, 2003,
with interest rates that vary from 2.25% t0 5.85%. InJune 2012, the PBA refinanced its capital lease
agreement with the OIA resulting from the issuance of OIA lease revenue refunding bonds related
to the capital lease agreement between the OIA and the PBA. This OIA refunding and related PBA
capital lease refinancing was done for the purpose of reducing the interest costs on the debt and
to achieve economic savings. Over the life of the capital lease agreement, the refinancing will result
in a debt service cash flow savings to the PBA of $3,273,365, a gross debt service present value
savings of $2,469,268, and a net economic present value benefit of $1,151,539 after considering
use of existing debt service funds. In April 2020, the PBA refinanced its capital lease agreement with
the OIA resulting from the issuance of OIA lease revenue refunding bonds related to the capital
lease agreement between the OIA and the PBA. This OIA refunding and related PBA capital lease
refinancing was done for the purpose of reducing the interest costs on the debt and to achieve
economic savings. Over the life of the capital lease agreement, the refinancing will result in a debt
service cash flow savings to the PBA of $437,547, and a net economic present value benefit of
$369,165 after considering use of existing debt service funds. The principal balance of the 2020
lease is $6,465,000 and the interest balance of $616,861 is payable semi-annually June 1 and
December 1, commencing December 1, 2024, with interest rates of 1.960%. Deferred costs
resulting from the lease refunding of $1,047,129 and $1,163,477 are reflected as a deferred outflow
of resources on the statement of net position as of June 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Amortization is recognized over the remaining life of the refunded lease. Amortization expense of
$116,348 was recorded in 2024, 2023 and in 2022.

The principal of and the interest on the bonds is payable from the payments made by the Oklahoma
County Public Buildings Authority to the Oklahoma Industries Authority pursuant to terms of a
Lease Purchase Agreement date as of April 2020. The Bonds are limited obligation of the issuer,
secured by a pledge of the Trust Estate. The Trust Estate consists of the Lease Payments, the Lease
Agreement, Revenues, the Parking and Use Agreement, the parking agreements with the Corporate
Users, and all funds and accounts established by the Indenture and the monies and investments
therein, including any unexpended Bond Proceeds. The Bonds are special and limited obligations
of the Issuer payable solely from the Lease Payments and other revenues pledged for payment
thereof.
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The OIA Bonds were issued to provide funds for the Public Buildings Authority to (1) acquire,
construct and equip a parking garage, (2) advance refund the Public Building Authority Capital
Improvement Bonds, Series 1997, (3) make improvements to the Metro Parking Garage, (4) make
other County improvements, (5) fund capitalized interest, (6) purchase Surety Bonds in lieu of
funding a Debt Service Reserve Fund, and (7) pay certain costs of issuing the Bonds. This agreement
did not qualify as a lease under GASB Statement No. 87.

The following is the new schedule of the future minimum lease payments, and the present value of
the net minimum payments as follows:

Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2025 $670,000 $123,431 $793,431
2026 680,000 110,250 790,250
2027 695,000 96,824 791,824
2028 705,000 83,153 788,153
2029-2032 2,940,000 191,835 3,131,835
2033 775,000 11,368 786,368

$6,465,000 $616,861 $7,081,861

In February 2024, OIA issued $15,000,000 in General Obligation (GO) bonds for the purpose of
remodeling the Investors Capital Building facility to accommodate the District Attorney’s office,
renovating the Juvenile Justice Center courtrooms, renovating the County Courthouse roof and
performing various metro structural repairs.

Year Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service
2025 - - 857,796 857,796
2026 - - 683,200 683,200
2027 - - 683,200 683,200
2028 - - 683,200 683,200
2029-2053 13,930,000 - 11,408,850 25,338,850
2054 1,070,000 - 22,738 1,092,738
15,000,000 - 14,338,984 29,338,984

3. Discretely Presented Component Unit

Conduit Debt Obligations

The activities of the Oklahoma County Finance Authority consist primarily of arranging financing to
industrial, commercial and other various organizations in an effort to promote economic
development which will benefit the county. Over time these transactions have taken on various
forms, including notes and bonds. The OCFA loans the proceeds from the notes and bonds to the
organizations, or the OCFA leases the facilities acquired with the proceeds to the organizations
under financing lease arrangements providing for transfer of the property to such organizations at
the end of the lease.
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The notes and bonds issued by the OCFA are special and limited obligations of the OCFA, payable
solely out of revenues derived from and in connection with the underlying loan agreements and the
underlying security provided under the loan agreements. The OCFA, the County of Oklahoma, the
State of Oklahoma, or any other political subdivision thereof is not obligated in any manner for
repayment of the notes and bonds. Accordingly, the notes and bonds are not reported as liabilities
inthe accompanying financial statements nor are the related receivables and investments reported
as assets.

As of June 30, the outstanding principal balances due on these bonds were as follows:

Date of Original 2024
Issuance Balance Balance
GNMA ARM Mortgage Back Securities 1995 Nov 1995 $13,000,000 $39,039

Housing Revenue Bonds Chapel Ridge of
Lease Revenue Bonds (OKC County Health

Department Project) Series 2012 Jan 2012 8,395,000 3,920,000
Educational Facilities Leave Revenue Bonds

(Crooked Oak Public Schools Project)

Series 2013A Aug 2013 7,660,000 3,100,000

Revenue Note

(Science Museum Oklahoma Project) Dec 2014 3,000,000 1,313,234
Oklahoma City County Health Dept. Project

Lease Revenue Bonds Series 2015 Feb 2015 5,500,000 3,940,000
Educational Facilities Leave Revenue Bonds

(Bethany Public Schools Project) Aug 2015 4,110,000 535,000
Educational Facilities Leave Revenue Bonds

(Harrah Public Schools Project) Jun 2016 13,945,000 6,290,000
Deer Creek Public Schools Leave Revenue Bonds

Series 2016B Dec 2016 20,000,000 16,155,000

Series 2016C Dec 2016 30,000,000 24,245,000
Midwest City-Del City Public Schools Project

Series 2018 Feb 2018 77,060,000 34,480,000
Western Heights Public Schools Project

Series 2018A Feb 2018 25,030,000 11,455,000

Deer Creek Public Schools Project

Series 2018 Mar 2018 56,540,000 46,850,000
Millwood Public Schools Project

Series 2019 Feb 2019 10,790,000 7,819,500
Francis Tuttle Technology Center School Project

Series 2019 Dec 2019 25,000,000 20,555,000
Crooked Oak Public Schools Project

Series 2020 May 2020 5,330,000 4,675,000
Jones Public Schools Project

Series 2020 Jun 2020 14,910,000 12,245,000
Francis Tuttle Tech Center School Project

Series 2020 Sep 2020 20,000,000 17,026,246
Deer Creek Public Schools Project

Series 2020 Nov 2020 36,950,000 29,405,000
Bethany Public Schools Project

Series 2020 Dec 2020 5,240,000 5,240,000
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Date of Original 2024
Issuance Balance Balance
John H. Johnson Care Suites Project
Series 2020 Jan 2021 19,785,905 19,048,341
Oklahoma City County Health Dept Project
Series 2021 Feb 2021 5,750,000 5,285,000
SFS Development, Inc. — Santa Fe South Project
Lease Revenue Bonds Series 2022A Jun 2022 13,835,000 13,835,000
Lease Revenue Bonds Series 2022B Jun 2022 4,250,000 3,775,000
Deer Creek Public Schools Project
Educational Facilities Lease Revenue Bonds 2022 Sept 2022 96,260,000 95,305,000
SFS Development, Inc.
Charter Revenue & Refunding Bonds 2023A Jan 2023 13,455,000 13,455,000
Charter Revenue & Refunding Bonds 2023B Jan 2023 1,545,000 1,545,000
Choctaw-Nicoma Park Public Schools Project
Series 2023 Jan 2023 112,170,000 112,170,000
Epworth Villa Project Jan 2024
Series 2023A 6,000,000 1,995,000
Series 2023B 66,700,000 66,700,000
Series 2023C 13,724,671 13,832,868
Midwest City-Del City Public Schools Project
Educational Facilities Lease Revenue Bonds Feb 2024 233,295,000 233,295,000
Harrah Public Schools Project
Educational Facilities Lease Revenue Bonds,
Series 2024 April 2024 25,455,000 25,455,000
ASTEC Project
Charter School Lease Revenue Bonds,
Series 2024 May 2024 64,325,000 64,325,000
Total $1,059,010,576  _$919,309,228

The OCFA, as a conduit bond issuer, has had outstanding issues, which have been in default in the
payment of principal and interest. Since the notes and bonds issued by the OCFA are only limited
obligations of the OCFA, as discussed above, the OCFA has not incurred any losses as a result of
these defaults.

4. Judgments Payable

Under Oklahoma law, judgments against the County are payable over a three-year period and bear
annualinterest at four percentage points above the average United States Treasury Bill rate for the
preceding year, not to exceed 10% per annum. Ad valorem taxes to retire judgments are levied
against all taxable property within the County and are accumulated and paid out of the Debt Service
Fund over a three-year period. During the year, the County paid $1,116,667 in judgments and
$260,894 in related interest on these judgments. On June 30, 2024, the total amount of unpaid
judgment principal of $4,122,837 is reflected in the Statement of Net Position.
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A summary of judgments payable to maturity is as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total Interest Rate
2024 $2,732,612 $432,898 $3,165,510 10.50%
2025 1,224,279 132,071 1,356,350 9.50%
2026 165,946 15,765 181,711 9.50%
Total $4,122,837 $580,734  $4,703,571

The interest rate on judgments varies annually based on state law but the future debt service
requirements for interest have been determined by using the rate applicable to the current year.

5. Changes in long-term liabilities
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due within
Governmental activities: Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Bonds payable $50,500,000 $- $(5,500,000) $45,000,000 $5,000,000
Bond Premium 1,578,994 - (188,009) 1,390,985 157,470
Notes Payable 132,965 - (64,476) 68,489 36,837
Lease Obligations 238,350 65,550 (110,907) 192,993 111,313
Judgments payable 4,566,667 672,837 (1,116,667) 4,122,837 2,732,612
Compensated absences 7,341,669 6,606,247 (6,769,523) 7,178,393 5,303,012
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $64,358,645 $7,344,634 $(13,749,582) $57,953,697 $13,341,244
Business-type activities:
Notes Payable $7,120,000  $ 15,000,000 $ (655,000) $21,465,000 $ 670,000
Premium - 449,728 - 449,728 14,991
Long-term liabilities $7,120,000 $15,449,728 $ (655,000) $21,914,728 $ 684,991

For governmental activities, bonds and judgments are liquidated by ad valorem taxes through the
Debt Service Fund, while leases and compensated absences are primarily liquidated by General
Fund, Highway Cash, and Sheriff Special Revenue.
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G. Net Position and Fund Balances
On June 30, 2024, the government-wide net position categories are comprised of the following
components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — Governmental Assets

Capital Related Assets:
Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Related Assets

Capital Related Liabilities:

Capital Related Debt

Bonds outstanding

Unamortized bond premium

Note payable obligations

Lease obligations

Portion of bonds not capital related or unspent
Total Capital Related Debt

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted Net Position — Government Activities

General Government
Resale property
Records preservation
Public safety
Roads & highways
Economic development
Debt service
Other purposes

Restricted Net Position

Unrestricted Net Position

Total Net Position

$291,443,275
(169,527,181)

121,916,094

(1,909,399)

(45,000,000)
(1,390,985)
(68,489)
(192,993)
43,430,107

(3,222,360)

$116,784,335

$8,424,555
1,549,034
9,005,034
18,023,097
4,586,724
13,719,506

55,307,950

(344,475,730)

$(172,383,445)
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The amount of negative Unrestricted Net Position reported for governmental activities is primarily
due to total OPEB liability of $233,605,717 and Deferred inflow of resources of $225,427,463 that
have no corresponding plan assets held in trust. In these cases, the County is obligated for long-
term obligations for which no corresponding asset is reported, thereby creating a negative amount
reported for unrestricted net position. None of the restricted net position as reported above is
restricted by enabling legislation. All restrictions are imposed by state statutes.

Net Investment in Capital Assets — Business Type Activities

Capital Related Assets:

Capital Assets $29,720,770

Accumulated Depreciation (17,814,003)
Total Capital Related Assets $11,906,767
Capital Related Debt

Deferred amount on lease refinancing 1,047,129

Capital related liabilities (847,810)

Capital related debt (21,914,728)

Unspent bond proceeds 15,222,366
Total Capital Related Debt and Liabilities $(6,493,043)
Net Investment in Capital Assets $5,413,724
Restricted Net Position — Business Type Activities

Debt service 23,524,643

Total restricted $23,524,643

Unrestricted Net Position

Total Net Position

$28,938,367
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Major Funds

American Debt
Highway Resale Rescue County Jail Service Non-major
General Cash Property Plan Act Bond Fund Fund Funds Total
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory $110,631 $818,398 - - - - $262,400 $1,191,429
Restricted for:
Administration and records - - 8,424,555 - - - 6,885,308 15,309,863
management
Road and bridge - 14,259,162 - - - - 3,763,935 18,023,097
construction & repair
Emergency management - - - - - - 643,141 643,141
Health - Opioid settlement - - - - - - 2,598,479 2,598,479
programs
Detention maintenance & - - - - - - 8,694 8,694
operation
Law enforcement - - - - - - 1,808,252 1,808,252
Courthouse security - - - - - - - -
Court services - - - - - - 1,194,505 1,194,505
Debt service - - - - - 5,475,723 - 5,475,723
Flood plain and hazard - - - - - - 1,320,983 1,320,983
mitigation project
Graffiti and weed removal - - - - - - 158,354 158,354
program
Capital projects - - - - - - 1,174,831 1,174,831
Land clearing and - - - - - - 3,726,020 3,726,020
acquisition
Public Safety - Jail - - - - 40,314,061 - - 40,314,061
Public Safety - Covid - - - - - - - -
Subtotal - 14,259,162 8,424,555 - 40,314,061 5,475,723 23,282,502 91,756,003
Committed to:
Economic development - - - - - - - -
Self insurance claims 4,071,251 - - - - - - 4,071,251
Capital projects - - - - - - - -
Subtotal 4,071,251 - - - - - - 4,071,251
Assigned to:
General Government 1,901,833 - - - - - - 1,901,833
Public Safety 201,624 - - - - - - 201,624
Roads & highways 199,182 - - - - - - 199,182
Health & welfare 95,304 - - - - - - 95,304
Culture and recreation - - - - - - - -
Capital projects - - - - - - 10,599,013 10,599,013
Subtotal 2,397,943 - - - - - 10,599,013 12,996,956
Unassigned: 31,115,868 - - - - - - 31,115,868
Total fund balances $37,695,693 $15,077,560 $8,424,555 - $40,314,061 $5,475,723 $34,143,915  $141,131,507
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Note IV. Other Information

A. Risk Management and Primary Government

Oklahoma County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; or acts of God. Significant losses
are covered by commercial insurance for buildings and personal property. There have been no
significant reductions in insurance coverage, and settlement amounts have not exceeded
insurance coverage for the current year or the three prioryears. The County currently is self-insured
for health and dental benefits, worker's compensation and tort liability coverage.

The Health and Dental Plan was established by Oklahoma County to provide benefits for its
employees, their dependents, eligible retirees and their survivors, participants covered under
continuation of coverage, and employees on leave of absence as setforthin Title 11 O.S. 2001, §23-
108. The majority of the cost of coverage for employees is paid by the County, and all other costs
are intended to be an expense of the insured. Certain limitations are placed upon these benefits
as to the amount of coverage and who may be covered in specific areas. The County uses a third-
party administrator to administer the program. The administrator receives and pays claims from
county funds based upon contract limitations. The administrator is responsible for ensuring that
claims are legitimate, based on enrollment information provided by the County and claims
submitted by or on behalf of the claimant. The administrator receives a monthly fee for the
services. The administrator also receives stop loss and life insurance premiums that are in turn
remitted to the appropriate third-party vendor.

Workers’ Compensation - In accordance with Title 85, of the Oklahoma State Statutes, employees
are covered by the workers’ compensation program at the expense of Oklahoma County at their
date of employment. When an injury or work-related illness occurs, an Occupational Injury Report
is filed. There are three categories of compensation: (1) temporary total disability benefits equal to
two-thirds of the employees' average weekly salary; and/or (2) one hundred percent (100%) of all
medical bills paid; and/or (3) a permanent disability settlement. When an employee remains off
work due to an occupationalinjury orillness, temporary total disability is paid until (a) the employee
returns to full-time work with the employer; or (b) the employee requests a trial to determine
permanent disability; or (c) the parties agree in writing that such payments may terminate; or (d) by
court order. (Temporary total disability benefits may be terminated at any time without a court
orderin the case of an employee who has not filed a Form 3 or Form 3-b with the court.) The County
employs Consolidated Benefit Resources as the administrator for the workers' compensation
program at a monthly fee. In accordance with the contract, the administrator is responsible for
openingthe files, paying the medical bills and paying the time-loss claims and settlementsincurred
as aresult of an accident or work-related illness.

Tort Claims - Under the Oklahoma constitutional and related state law, losses resulting from tort
claim judgments rendered by a court of competent jurisdiction are required to be paid, with interest
on the unpaid balance, through a statutorily required levy of ad valorem taxes levied against all
taxable County property and payable over a three-year period. Estimated liabilities from tort claims
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are recorded as claims liability, until they are converted to a court judgment, at which time they are
reported as judgment liabilities for which property taxes will be levied, and collections will be used
for the retirement of this liability. Tort claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) are not considered
material to the financial statement for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Component Unit:

OCPBA is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. OCPBA manages this
risk through the purchase of commercial insurance policies paid for by Oklahoma County and
subject to the terms of a management contract with Oklahoma County that obligates Oklahoma
Countyto defend and pay for any litigation expense or judgment against OCPBA or its property upon
demand.

Recognition and Measurement of Claims Loss Expenses and Liabilities

Claims losses are recognized when it is probable that a loss has occurred, and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. In determining claims expenses and liabilities, events that might
create claims, but for which none have been reported, are also considered. For most claims self-
insuredrisks, liabilities for unpaid claims are estimates determined by independent actuaries using
actuarial methods as follows: incurred loss development, paid loss development,
frequency/severity, exposure/loss rate (incurred loss), and exposure/loss rate (paid loss).

Unpaid Claims Liabilities
The following represent the changes in approximate aggregate liabilities of the County from July 1,
2023 to June 30, 2024:

Health Care 2024 2023
Unpaid Claims, beginning of fiscal year $2,425,000 $3,414,000
Claims and changes in estimates 31,411,428 31,862,376
Claim payments (30,109,428) (32,851,376)
Unpaid Claims, end of fiscal year $3,727,000 $2,425,000
Workers Compensation 2024 2023
Unpaid Claims, beginning of fiscal year $2,748,000 $2,788,000
Claims and changes in estimates 243,717 328,125
Claim payments (265,717) (368,125)
Unpaid Claims, end of fiscal year $2,726,000 $2,748,000
Total Current Claims Liability, end of fiscal year $6,453,000 $5,173,000
Current liabilities 6,453,000 5,173,000
Noncurrent liabilities - -
Total claims liability $6,453,000 $5,173,000
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B. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Federal Grants. The County receives financial assistance from the United States governmentin the
form of grants. Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims,
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount,
if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Litigation. The County is contingently liable for lawsuits and other claims in the ordinary course of
its operations. The settlement of such contingencies under the budgetary process would require
appropriation of revenues yet to be realized and would not materially affect the financial position
of the County on June 30, 2024. Any court approved judgments would be paid through a levy of a
constitutionally required ad valorem tax over a three-year period.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation is
utilized in the governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are not accounted for
as expenditures or liabilities. Such funds are reported as assigned if not already reported as
restricted or committed fund balance. On June 30, 2024, the County had outstanding
encumbrances in the following funds:

General Fund $2,958,154
Highway Cash 762,885
Resale Property 18,030
Non-major 38,005,061
Total $41,744,130

C. Other Post-Employment Benefits
Plan description — The County sponsors and administers a self-funded, single-employer defined

health benefit plan. This plan was established by the Oklahoma County Board of County
Commissioners and the Budget Board who has the authority to establish and amend the benefits.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75.

Benefits provided — The County provided medical, dental and vision plans for all eligible active and
retired County employees and their dependents. Employees who are covered under the County's
group health plan prior to retirement are eligible for lifetime retiree health benefits once they meet
the following eligibility requirements and have at least five (5) years of service:

1. Hired prior to January 1, 2005 - 60 points based on the sum of age and years of service.
2. Hired on or after January 1, 2005 - 75 points based on the sum of age and years of service.

A life insurance plan is offered to employees hired prior to February 1, 1987. The program is
intended to offer comprehensive coverage of most life, medical with prescription drugs, dental and
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vision benefits. The pre-Medicare medical claims are administered by HealthSmart Benefit
Solutions. The dental coverage is provided through Delta Dental, and the vision coverage is
provided through Vision Service Plan.

Eligible employees are required to pay set premiums for a portion of the cost, with the County
subsidizing the remaining costs. Retirees are required to contribute 18.4% of the premiums for
medical, prescription drugs and dental benefits. Retirees who retired prior to January 1, 1989, are
grandfathered in a frozen contribution rate for their lifetime and the lifetime of their spouses, if
covered. The annual frozen contribution rate for benefit coverage is $252 for single coverage and
$576 for retiree and spouse coverage. The benefit options available to retirees under age 65 are the
same as for the active employees. The contribution requirements are established and amended as
needed by the Budget Board on an annual basis. The premium rates are set and amended by the
Budget Board and approved by the Board of County Commissioners.

Employees covered by benefit terms - On June 30, 2024 the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

Active Employees 1,185
Inactive or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 509
Total 1,694

Total OPEB Liability —- The County’s total OPEB liability of $249,422,069 was measured as of June
30, 2024 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions- The total OPEB liability was determined based on an actuarial valuation
prepared as of June 30, 2024, based on results of an actuarial experience study for the period July
1, 2016 to June 30, 2019 and using the following actuarial assumptions:

e Actuarial Cost Method - Entry Age Normal; level dollar amortization

e Discount Rate - 3.97%, based on June 30, 2024 and 3.86% for June 30,2023 published Bond
Buyer 20-year GO Index

e Inflation-2.5% per year

e Coverage — Retirees — based on actual data; Actives — 45% of active employees are assumed to
be married at retirement with 100% electing coverage for spouse. Husbands are assumed to be
four years older than their wives.

e Retirement Age: Retirementrates vary by age from age 50 to 75 and based on eligibility for early
retirement and hire date:
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Hired Prior to 11/1/2011 Hired After 11/1/2011
Unreduced Reduced Unreduced Reduced

Age Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement
50 -54 15% N/A N/A N/A
55-56 10% 4% N/A N/A

57 11% 4% N/A N/A

58 12% 4% N/A N/A

59 13% 5% N/A N/A

60 14% 6% 30%/15%* 5%

61 20% 13% 30%/15%* 6%

62 25% 25% 30%/15%* 6%

63 15% 15% 30%/15%* 6%

64 15% 15% 30%/15%* 13%

65 30% 30% 30%/15%* 30%
66 — 69 25% 25% 25% 25%
70-74 50% 50% 50% 50%

75+ 100% 100% 100% 100%

* 30% when first eligible to retire and then 15% thereafter.

Medical trend rates embedded in healthcare costs:

Fiscal Trend
Year-End Rate
2025-2026 8.5%
2027 8.0%
2028 7.5%
2029 7.0%
2030 -2031 6.5%
2032-2035 6.4%
2036 - 2060 6.3%
2061 -2084 6.0%
2085+ 5.0%

Mortality Rates —-Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans General Mortality Table Projected
Generationally with IRS 2024 Adjusted Scale MP-2021.

Rates of Disability — Rates range from .009% at age of 20 to .200% at age of 60

Rates of withdraw - rates used range from 26.00% for those with less than one year of service to
1.00% for those will twenty-eight or more years of service.
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Changes in Total OPEB Liability -The following table reports the components of changes in total
OPEB liability:

Total OPEB Liability

Balance beginning of year $287,138,940
Changes for the year
Service cost 11,728,103
Interest cost 11,396,024
Experience loss (gain) (48,737,327)
Changes in assumptions (4,837,122)
Benefits paid including refunds (7,266,549)
Net changes (37,716,871)
Balance end of year $249,422,069

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate- The following presents
the total OPEB liability of the employer calculated using the discount rate of 3.97%, as well as what
the Plan's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower (2.97%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.97%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(2.97%) Rate (3.97%) (4.97%)
Oklahoma County $282,342,143 $233,605,717 $196,476,508
Criminal Justice Authority (DPCU) 19,116,068 15,816,352 13,302,507
Employers' total OPEB liability $301,458,211 $249,422,069 $209,779,015

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate - The
following presents the total OPEB liability of the employer calculated using the healthcare cost
trend rate of 5% to 8.5% as well as what the Plan’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated
using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-percentage point lower (4.00% decreasing to 7.5%) or
1-percentage-point higher (6.00% decreasing to 9.5%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase
(4.00% decreasing to (5.00% decreasing (6.00% decreasing to
7.5%) to 8.5%) 9.5%)
Oklahoma County $195,180,862 $233,605,717 $284,344,336
Criminal Justice Authority (DPCU) 13,214,785 15,416,352 19,263,163
Employers' total OPEB liability $208,395,647 $249,022,069 $303,607,499

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB - For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Plan recognized OPEB expense (benefit)
of $(86,477,287). On June 30, 2024, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:
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County
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
Differences l?etween expected and $- $133,878,460 $- $9,064,285
actual experience
Changes of assumptions 41,166,084 47,215,466 2,787,163 3,196,739
Changes in proportion 45,311,203 44,333,537 44,333,537 45,311,203
(Entity) contributions during ) ) ) )
measurement date
(Entity) benefit payments
subsequent to the measurement - - - -
date
Total $86,477,287 $225,427,463 $47,120,700 $57,572,227

The amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

County CJA
2025 $(53,013,592) $1,212,999
2026 (37,911,443) 2,235,491
2027 (19,618,868) (14,944,279)
2028 (19,615,240) 1,182,299
2029 (8,791,033) (138,037)
Thereafter - -
Total $(138,950,176) $(10,451,527)

D. Employees’ Retirement Plans

Retirement Plans. In accordance with Oklahoma Statutes, Oklahoma County maintains two single-
employer public employee retirement plans. One plan, a defined benefit pension plan (the DB Plan)
covers participants with retirement, death and disability benefits. Effective November 1, 1991,
under House Bill 1226, County employees were given the option to join a defined contribution plan
(the DC Plan). Both systems are administered by a nine-member Board of Trustees which includes
the Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners, the County Treasurer, the County Clerk, two
members appointed by the Board of County Commissioners, and four members elected from all
eligible full-time employees. Fund policies, contribution requirements and plan provisions are
determined by this board, although the Board of County Commissioners has overriding authority.
The description of these plans are presented below.
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1. Defined Benefit Retirement Plan

General Information about the Plan

Plan Description

The County’s defined benefit pension plan, Employees’ Retirement System of Oklahoma County,
is a single-employer plan that covers employees of Oklahoma County, including all departments
and agencies, that were employed by the County prior to the conversion date of the defined
contribution planin 1991, and who elected not to convert to the defined contribution plan. The Plan
provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries.

Authority

The Board of County Commissioners of Oklahoma County was authorized to establish, control and
manage the Plan under Oklahoma statutes, and as such established the Board of Trustees for the
Employees’ Retirement System of Oklahoma County to administer the Plan. The Board of County
Commissioners has the authority to establish or amend benefit terms of the Plan. The Board of
Trustees approves any cost-of-living adjustments to the Plan as well as changes contribution
requirements.

Benefits provided

The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their
beneficiaries. Retirement benefits are calculated by adding 2 2/3% of average compensation times
years of service, not to exceed 15 years, plus 2% of average compensation times years of service in
excess of fifteen (15) years, but not over fifteen (15) years, plus 1% of average compensation times
years of service in excess of thirty (30) years, but not over five (5) years. Surviving spouses are
eligible for 66 2/3% of retirees’ benefits after their death. If an employee terminates with fewer than
eight (8) years of service, he is entitled to receive only his actual contributions.

Those persons eligible for retirement benefits are as follows:

a. Employee shall have reached the age of sixty-two (62) years and shall have been employed for a
period of at least eight (8) years with Oklahoma County, the last two (2) years of service shall
have been consecutive immediately preceding such retirement, and service with the County
shall have ceased.

b. Any employee who shall have completed eight (8) years of service as a County employee, the
last two (2) years of which were consecutive, and who at the time of completing such eight (8)
years of service shall not have reached the age of sixty-two (62) years, may elect to retire, such
retirement benefits to begin when County employee shall have attained the age of sixty-two (62)
years, provided that such election shall be in writing upon such forms as the Board of Trustees
shall direct.

c. Any employee who shall have completed thirty (30) years of service as a County employee, the
last two (2) years of which were consecutive and attained age of fifty-five (55).

d. Any employee whose age and years of creditable service with the County equal eighty (80).

e. Any employee of the County covered by this who shall have completed eight (8) years of
employment with this County and who by reason of disability shall become disabled to such an
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extent as to be unable to perform his/her duties as an employee may be entitled to disability
retirement, and to such benefits as the Board of Trustees shall determine; provided, however,
that the Board of Trustees shall find that said disability is total and permanent.

Employees covered by the benefit terms.
On June 30, 2024, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 78

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 7

Active plan participants 1

Total 86
Disability Benefits

(1) Any employee of the County making an application for disability benefits may be required to
provide the Board of Trustees sworn affidavits of at least two (2) physicians selected by the
applicant at his own expense and showing that, in the opinion of such physicians, such disability is
total and permanent in its nature.

(2) The Board may, if it so desires, appoint two (2) licensed physicians of its own choosing to
examine the employee and such employee shall consent to said examination, and after such
examination, if the said four (4) physicians be equally divided in their opinion the Trustees shall
appoint a fifth (5th) licensed physician, the employee consenting to such examination. The
question of eligibility, by reason of total permanent disability, shall be decided by the Board of
Trustees after evaluation of opinion of all examining physicians.

An income average shall be used by calculating the average income of the highest three (3) years
for said employee during participation in said retirement system. Upon completion of each of the
following years the listed percentages shall apply:

Year 8th 9th 10th 11th 12th 13th 14th 15th
Percentages 21.31% 23.98% 26.65% 29.32% 31.99% 34.66% 37.33% 40.00%

Sixteen (16) through thirty (30) years - an additional two percent (2%) of highest three (3) years
average income per year.

For all years of service after thirty (30) years, an additional one percent (1%) for each year’s service.
The sum of all creditable service shall not exceed thirty-five (35) years.

Death Benefits

If a married employee has completed eight years of service but dies before he reaches the age of
retirement, the surviving spouse shall receive benefits equal to 66 2/3% of benefits to be received
by the employee under the plan at the assumed date of retirement.
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If an employee receiving or eligible to receive retirement benefits dies, the surviving spouse shall
receive retirement benefits in the amount of 66 2/3% of benefits the deceased was receiving, or
was entitled to receive, for the remainder of the natural life of the surviving spouse.

Contributions

As specified by the Plan, County officers contribute 12% of the annual compensation of their active
employees’ salary to the Plan. During the year ended June 30, 2024 contributions in the amount of
$1,011,416 received from the Oklahoma County General Fund.

Administrative Cost
Administrative costs paid from the retirement fund include compensation of actuarial consultants,
audit fees and bank fees.

Net Pension Liability
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2024 and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2024 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Method

Amortization method Level dollar, open

Asset method Market Value of Assets

Inflation 2.25%

Annual pay increases 5.00 percent

Interest rates Discount rate 2.75%
Discount rate-Prior year 2.75%
Expected long term rate of return 2.75%
Municipal bond rate 3.97%

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Mortality Table for General Employees amount
weighted with improvement scale MP-2021.

The Municipal bond rate came from the 20-Bond Index spot rate for the business day of June 30,
2024 at 3.97%. The 20-Bond Index consists of 20 general obligation bonds that mature in 20 years.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a block-
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2024 are summarized in the following table:
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Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Cash and short-term investments 99% 2.75%
Other investments 1% 2.75%

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 2.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made
at the current contribution rate and that contributions will be made at rates equal to the average
ratio of the previous three year’s contributions to actual benefit payments paid from the trust.
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
depleted by the current members during the 2034 fiscal year. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return 2.75% was used to discount funded projected benefit payments and the municipal
bond rate 3.97% was used to discount unfunded projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability. The single effective discount rate used for the accounting valuation was 2.75%.

Changes in Net pension liability

Increase/(Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension
Liability (a) Position (b) Liability (a)-(b)

Balances at 6/30/2023 $14,904,166 $6,255,247 $8,648,919
Changes for the year:
- Service cost
- Interest 392,812 - 392,812
e—)qlg;f:zr:g:es between expected and actual 66,207 i 66,207
- Assumption Changes (123,862) - (123,862)
- Contributions - employers - 1,011,416 (1,011,416)
- Net investment income - 451,365 (451,365)
- Benefit payments including refunds (1,240,220) (1,240,220) -
- Administrative Expense - (18,459) 18,459

Net changes (905,063) 204,102 (1,109,165)
Balances at 06/30/2024 $13,999,103 $6,459,349 $7,539,754

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 2.75%, which
came from 20-year municipal bond spot rate, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (1.75%) or 1-percentage-
point higher (3.75%) than the current rate:
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1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.75%) (2.75%) (3.75%)
A. Total Pension Liability $15,448,029 $13,999,103 $12,775,189
B. Plan Fiduciary Net Position $6,459,349 $6,459,349 $6,459,349
C. Net Pension Liability: A-B $8,988,680 $7,539,754 $6,315,840

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the County recognized pension expense of $114,878.

Since certain pension expense items are amortized over closed periods each year, the deferred
portions of these items must be tracked annually. If the amounts increase the pension expense,
they are labeled as deferred outflows and amounts that decrease the pension expense are labeled
as deferred inflows. These outflows and inflows are amortized on a level dollar basis with no
interest added for the deferral amounts. Deferred experience gains/losses and changes in
assumptions are amortized over the average remaining service lives of all employees that are
provided with pensions through the pension plan at the beginning of the measurement period.
Investment gains/losses are amortized over a five-year period. The following shows the summary
of deferred outflows and inflows as of June 30, 2024:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
Earnings on pension plan investments $48,216 $(309,690)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30: Amounts
2025 ($55,666)
2026 (63,950)
2027 (83,918)
2028 (57,940)
2029 -
Thereafter -

A copy of the Defined Benefit Plan audit report can be obtained from the Finance Department of the
Oklahoma County Clerk, 320 Robert S. Kerr, Room 206, Oklahoma City, OK 73102. Also available
online at countyclerk.oklahomacounty.org.
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2. Defined Contribution Retirement Plan
Plan Description and Provisions. The Defined Contribution Plan is administered by Investrust. The
County is responsible for making contributions as determined by written action of the County.

Eligibility for the Defined Contribution Plan. A full-time employee shall be eligible to participate in
the Plan, if actively employed after June 30, 1991, or on a leave of absence authorized by the
Employer on that date. For purposes of determining eligibility, consecutive service prior to
Retirement is not required.

Benefits of the Defined Contribution Plan are as follows:

a. A Participant shall be entitled to receive the amount of their account, subject to vesting
restrictions when their age plus years of service at least totals sixty (60), or if a participant’s
employment is terminated at an earlier age as the result of a Total and Permanent Disability.

b. Ifaparticipant shall continue in active employment following their normal retirement date, they
shall continue to participate in the Plan. Such participant shall be entitled to receive the entire
amount of their contribution account as of their actual retirement date.

c. Upon the death of a vested participant, their beneficiary shall be entitled to receive the entire
amount of the participant’s vested contribution account.

Any Participant hired on or after November 1, 2005, will be fully vested after five (5) years of service.
The percentages in the applicable table hereafter set forth:

Years of Credited Service Percentage of Employer Contributions Vested
0-5 0%
5 100%

Distribution of benefits under the Defined Contribution Plan to or for the benefit of the Participant
shall be made by one of the following methods:

1. Alump sum distribution of the entire Account Balance, payable immediately.

2. An installment distribution consisting of approximately equal installations for a term not

extending beyond the joint life expectancy (as calculated in accordance with Internal Revenue

Service’s Regulations on the Initial Distribution Date) of the Participant and their spouse.

Systematic payments of specified amounts until account is exhausted.

4. Asingle lump sum, of a specified amount, payable immediately, and systematic payments of
specified amounts until account is exhausted.

w

An installment distribution consisting of approximately equalinstallments for a term not extending
beyond the life expectancy (as calculated in accordance with Internal Revenue Service’s
Regulations) on the Initial Distribution Date of the participant and their spouse.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accrual Method of Accounting

The Employees' Retirement System of Oklahoma County financial statements are prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting. Contributions are recognized as revenue in the period in which the
employees provide services. Investmentincome is recognized as earned. The net appreciation or
depreciation in the fair value of investments is recorded to investment income or loss based on the
valuation of investments at fiscal year-end.

Loans to Participants

During the 2007-2008 fiscal year the Plan was amended to include a Loan Policy which states that
each Plan Participant with a fully vested account balance is eligible to participate. The maximum
loan amount is the lesser of $50,000 or 50% of the Participant’s vested account balance. The
Summary of Significant Account Policies minimum loan amount is $1,000. The interest charged is
the National Prime Rate of Interest and will be fixed for the life of the loan. During the current fiscal
year, a total of $1,587,898 was loaned to participants, making the total outstanding loans to
participants in the amount of $5,817,762 on June 30, 2024.

Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made. As specified by the Plan, Oklahoma County
contributes an amount equal to 12% of the annual compensation of its participating employees’
salary to the Plan. During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, County contributions were
$6,429,566, which is reflected as pension expense in the financial statements. The Forfeiture
account is a trust fund maintained by the Plan Administrator and contains amounts previously
contributed by the County but forfeited by terminated employees who has not become vested. The
total amount forfeited during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, was $1,261,908. Retirement
benefits due to pension participant employees and beneficiaries on June 30, 2024, were
$6,393,315 at fair value, and are accounted for in a pension trust fund.

E. Tax Abatements

The County is subject to ad valorem tax abatements granted by the State of Oklahoma in
accordance with the Oklahoma Constitution, Article X Section 6B for qualifying manufacturing
concerns. Under this program, a five (5) year ad valorem tax exemption exempts all real and
personal property that is necessary for the manufacturing of a product and facilities engaged in
research and development which meet the requirements set by the Oklahoma Constitution and
statutes. In exchange for the five (5) year exemption, qualifying manufacturing concerns mustincur
investment costs of $250,000 or more for construction, acquisition, or expansion of a
manufacturing facility. In addition, there are general minimum payroll requirements that must be
met, and qualifying manufacturing concern must offer basic health benefit plan to all full-time
employees within one hundred eighty (180) days of employment. The County had $14,041 of ad
valorem taxes abated under this program for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.
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The State has an Ad Valorem Reimbursement Fund in accordance with Title 62 O.S. Section 193
that is used to reimburse the County for the loss of revenue. Contributions to this Fund come from
a dedicated tax stream comprised of one percent of net state personal and corporate income tax
revenues. The County received $313,461 during fiscal year 2024 and has an outstanding, unpaid
claim of $14,041 of reimbursement from the State as of June 30, 2024.

F. Subsequent Events
There have been no significant events affecting the County since the fiscal year ended June 30,
2024.

G. Restatement

The accompanying financial statements have been restated to correct for an overstated prior year
ending net position and current year beginning net position due to an overstatement of the County
Jail Bond Fund - Special Revenue in the amount of $1,335,450. The original bond issue premium
($1,574,700), less the underwriter’s discount ($239,250), was erroneously recorded twice in Fiscal
Year 2023, the year of bond issue.

Fiscal Year 2023, Ending Net Position ($238,693,145)
Restatement (1,335,450)
Fiscal Year 2023, Restated Ending Net Position (240,028,595)
Fiscal Year 2024, Beginning Net Position ($240,028,595)
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EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF OKLAHOMA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Year Ended June 30,

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Total pension liability

Service cost $ - % -3 - 3 - 8 - % - 3 21,857 § 47,585

Interest 392,812 423,496 411,087 381,747 439,558 516,290 857,331 885,190

Differences between expected and actual experience 66,207 (268.560) 125,926 (324,109) (356,654) (185,966) (335.074) 232,174

Changes in assumptions (123,862) - 1,203,176 (746,360) 316,290 555,858 3,926,990 (78,174)

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributic (1,240,220) (1,301,279) (1,276,629) (1,381,754) (1,512,929) (1,642,391) (1,714,769) (1,814,117)
Net change in total pension liability (905,063) (1,146,343) 463,560 (2,070,476) (1,113,735) (756,209) 2,756,335 (727,342)
Total pension liability - beginning 14,904,166 16,050,509 15,586,949 17,657,425 18,771,160 19,527,369 16,771,034 17,498,376
Total pension liability - ending 13,999,103 14,904,166 16,050,509 15,586,949 17,657,425 18,771,160 19,527,369 16,771,034
Plan net position

Contributions - employer 1,011,416 818,283 1,610,245 1,609,912 1,609,523 1,209,249 1,209,072 1,220,793

Net investment income 451,365 295,048 60,761 82,195 220,125 190,063 137,927 120,429

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributic (1,240,220) (1,301,279) (1,276,629) (1,381,754) (1,512,929) (1,642,391) (1,714,769) (1,814,117)

Administrative expenses (18,459) (17,868) (17,530) (16,730) (16,540) (16,287) (15,791) (15,983)

204,102 (205,816) 376,847 293,623 300,179 (259.,366) (383,561) (488.878)

Plan net position - beginning 6,255,247 6,461,063 6,084,216 5,790,593 5,490,414 5,749,780 6,133,341 6,622,219
Plan net position - ending 6,459,349 6,255,247 6,461,063 6,084,216 5,790,593 5,490,414 5,749,780 6,133,341
Net pension liability $ 7,539,754 $§ 8,648919 $ 9,589.446 $ 9,502,733 $ 11,866,832 § 13,280,746 $ 13,777,589 $ 10,637,693
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 46.14% 41.97% 40.25% 32.03% 32.79% 29.25% 29.44% 36.57%
Covered-employee payroll $ 102,686 $ 98,552 § 92,075 $ 86,732 $ 83,397 $ 80,968 $ 79,380 $ 78,840
Net pension liability as percentage of covered-employee payroll 7342.53% 8776.00% 10414.82% 10956.43% 14229.33% 16402.46% 17356.50% 13492.76%
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS

Year Ended June 30, 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Actuarially determined contribution $ 729,948 $ 807,315 $ 799,155 §$ 958,286 $ 1,096,714
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution (1,011,416) (818,283) (1,610,245) (1,609,912) (1,609,523)
Contributions deficiency (excess) $ (281,468) $ (10,968) $ (811,090) $ (651,626) $ (512,809)
Covered-employee payroll $ 102,686 $ 98,552 § 92,075 $ 86,732 § 83,397
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 984.96% 830.31% 1748.84% 1856.19% 1929.95%
Year Ended June 30, 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Actuarially determined contribution $ 1,186,835 §$ 1,067.876 $ 785,650 $ 811,130 §$ 789,368
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution (1,209,249) (1,209,072) (1,220,793) (1,227,012) (1,029,880)
Contributions deficiency (excess) $ (22,414) $ (141,196) $ (435,143) $ (415.882) $ (240,512)
Covered-employee payroll $ 80.968 § 79,380 $ 78,840 $ 198.634 § 258.839
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 1493.49% 1523.14% 1548.44% 617.73% 397.88%

Notes to Schedule
A. Actuarially determined contribution is determined for the plan year that ends in the fiscal year.
B. Methods and assumptions used to determine the contributions:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level dollar, open

Remaining amortization period 15 years

Asset valuation method Market value of assets

Rate of inflation 2.25% per year

Salary increases 5.00% per year

Investment rate of return 2.75% per year

Mortality table Pub-2010 Mortality Table for General Employees amount weighted with Improvement Scale MP-2021
Retirement age The earlier of age 62 or age 55 with at least 30 years of service
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EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF OKLAHOMA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS

Year Ended June 30, 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 7.62%  4.93% 1.00% 1.45% 421% 3.50% 2.50% 1.97% 2.37% 1.18%

Actuarial Valuation, Method and Assumptions

Valuation date July 1, 2024
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level dollar, open
Remaining amortization peric 15 years

Asset valuation method Market value of assets
Investment rate of return 2.75% per year

Salary increases 5.00% per year

Rate of inflation 2.25% per year

Cost of living adjustments ~ None



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability

A. Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Fiscal Year Ending June 30:

2024

1. Total OPEB Liability

a.

b.
c.
d

o

Service cost $11,728,103

Interest $11,396,024
Change in benefit terms o
Difference between expected and

($48,737,327)
($4,837,122)
($7,266,549)

actual experience

Change in assumptions

Benefit payments

Net change in Total OPEB Liability: sum
of (a) through (f)

Total OPEB Liability - beginning

Total OPEB Liability - ending

(37,716,871)
287,138,940
249,422,069

2. Plan Fiduciary Net Position

m O Qoo oW

Contributions - Employer 7,266,549
Contributions - Members 0
Net investment income 0
Benefit payments (7,266,549)
Administrative expenses 0
Other 0
Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net

Position: sum of (a) through (f) 0
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning 0
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - ending 0
Net OPEB liability: (1i) - (i) $249,422,069

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total OPEB liability: (i)

+(1i) 0.00%
Covered employee payroll 66,161,849
Plan net OPEB liability as a percentage

of the covered employee payroll: (j) =+ (l) 376.99%

2023

$14,417,194
$12,364,125
SO

($52,518,879)
($4,504,335)
($6,546,227)

(36,788,122)
323,927,062
287,138,940

6,546,227
0
0

(6,546,227)
0
0

0
0
0
$287,138,940

0.00%

62,873,675

456.69%

Oklahoma County OPEB Plan Report as of July 1, 2024

2022

$19,522,843
$8,961,004
S0

($23,777,351)
($73,003,844)
($6,228,142)

(74,525,490)
398,452,552
323,927,062

6,228,142
0
0

(6,228,142)
0
0

0
0
0
$323,927,062

0.00%
60,066,980

539.28%

2021

$21,997,684
$10,402,417
N¢

($90,721,045)

$11,384,017
($6,620,850)

(53,557,777)
452,010,329
398,452,552

6,620,850
0
0

(6,620,850)
0
0

0
0
0

$398,452,552

0.00%
55,529,670

717.55%
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability (continued)

Fiscal Year Ending June 30:

2019

$15,135,058
$13,715,215
S0

($32,348,295)
($15,758,137)
($5,785,436)

(25,041,595)
370,864,207
345,822,612

5,785,436

0

0
(5,785,436)

0

0

0
0
0
$345,822,612

0.00%

50,488,713

684.95%

A. Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability 2020
1. Total OPEB Liability
a. Service cost $13,448,049
b. Interest $13,791,124
c. Change in benefit terms S0
d. Difference between expected and
actual experience (855,784,783)
e. Change in assumptions $140,555,014
f.  Benefit payments (55,821,687)
g. Net change in Total OPEB Liability: sum
of (a) through (f) 106,187,717
h. Total OPEB Liability - beginning 345,822,612
i. Total OPEB Liability - ending 452,010,329
2. Plan Fiduciary Net Position
a. Contributions - Employer 5,821,687
b. Contributions - Members 0
c. Netinvestmentincome 0
d. Benefit payments (5,821,687)
e. Administrative expenses 0
f. Other 0
g. Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net
Position: sum of (a) through (f) 0
h. Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning 0
i.  Plan Fiduciary Net Position - ending 0
j- Net OPEB liability: (1i) - (i) $452,010,329
k. Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total OPEB liability: (i)
+(1i) 0.00%
I. Covered employee payroll 51,833,655
m. Plan net OPEB liability as a percentage
of the covered employee payroll: (j) + (1) 872.04%
SAGE
] E \/\/ Oklahoma County OPEB Plan Report as of July 1, 2024

2018

$18,949,108
$12,407,467
S0

($37,016,035)
($37,002,347)
($5,749,184)

(48,410,991)
419,275,198
370,864,207

5,749,184

0

0
(5,749,184)

0

0

0
0
0
$370,864,207

0.00%
51,920,151

714.30%

2017
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REVENUES

Property taxes
Advalorem Tax - Current
Advalorem Tax - Prior
Misc Property Taxes
Total Property taxes

Charges for services
County Clerk Fees
County Treasurer Fees
Public Records

Miscellaneous Charge for Services

Total Charges for Services

Intergovernmental revenues
Motor Vehicle Stamps
Motor Vehicle Collections
Revaluation-Cities & Schools
Juvenile Justice-Lunches
Juvenile Detention Services
Juvenile Court Maintenance
Juvenile Rent (DHS)

Juvenile-Alt to Detention/Transportation

Juvenile-Link
Juvenile-State Boarding
Juvenile Grant Funds-State
JUV GPS FEES

Pharmacy Reimb for Social Services

Sheriff-SCAAP Grant

DA Revolving

Election Board- Salary

Election Board- Expense

Election Board- Municipality Reimb
Court Fund Maintenance

Court Fund Payroll Reimb

Court Revolving Fund Reimb

Total Intergovernmental revenues

Interestincome

Miscellaneous revenue

Public Building Authority Admin Overhead
Public Building Authority Utility Reimb

Criminal Justice Authority Reimb

Royalty

Rental

Retirement Reimb for Bailiff's

Remington Park - Admission Fees

Miscellaneous Reimbursements
Total Miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues

See the notes to the budgetary comparison schedules.

OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA

GENERAL FUND
BUDGET TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Amounts/ Positive
Original Final Budgetary Basis (Negative)

$ 84,952,494 $ 89,143,716 $ 93,411,294 $ 4,267,578
2,150,319 2,173,289 2,508,662 335,373
485,839 492,929 896,645 403,716
87,588,652 91,809,934 96,816,601 5,006,667
5,025,076 4,929,677 4,457,335 (472,342)
2,652 2,295 2,840 545
3,728 3,775 4,089 314
5,812 4,751 4,710 (41)
5,037,268 4,940,498 4,468,974 (471,524)
315,514 317,229 434,007 116,778
1,039,190 1,088,909 1,158,351 69,442
5,655,301 5,782,120 5,782,120 0
129,142 136,829 168,975 32,146
2,005,099 4,027,968 3,918,151 (109,817)
81,900 93,551 109,737 16,186
181,487 240,696 331,439 90,743
2,790 2,951 1,729 (1,222)
882 1,116 2,315 1,199
- 2,576 - (2,576)
- - 2,160 2,160
339,200 339,200 149,185 (190,015)
350,000 350,000 101,449 (248,551)
92,151 103,586 141,813 38,227
28,800 13,042 23,934 10,892
- - 419,822 419,822
773,559 680,008 - (680,008)
- - 227,260 227,260
10,995,015 13,179,781 12,972,447 (207,334)
6,000,000 6,000,000 8,905,069 2,905,069
50,000 100,000 100,000 -
51,000 45,431 21,222 (24,210)
72,672 72,672 72,672 (0)
55,342 48,126 36,603 (11,523)
360 360 300 (60)
31,511 33,003 33,801 798
139,289 638,920 16,020,617 15,381,697
400,174 938,512 16,285,215 15,346,703
$ 110,021,109 $ 116,868,726 $ 139,448,306 $ 22,579,580

94



EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government

General government:
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay

County commissioners:
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay

Assessor regular:
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay

Assessor revaluation:
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay

Treasurer:
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay

Court clerk:
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay

County clerk:
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay

Excise & equalization:
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay

County audit:
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay

District attorney - state:
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay

See the notes to the budgetary comparison schedules.

OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA

GENERAL FUND
BUDGET TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Amounts/ Positive
Original Final Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Original Approp Revised Budget Actual + Enc

1,200 1,200 1,200 -
4,992 4,992 210 4,782
39,797,704 41,019,576 40,240,557 779,019
1,428 1,428 1,428 -
384,088 521,711 518,891 2,820
122,467 178,398 178,767 (369)
25,200 32,025 31,920 105
1,440 4,056 3,962 95
2,316,434 2,411,190 2,209,920 201,270
933,058 968,910 899,015 69,895
44,450 53,167 33,042 20,125
408,727 460,160 428,064 32,096
30,958 48,890 45,990 2,900
3,678,764 3,720,421 3,473,187 247,234
1,609,312 1,627,323 1,492,219 135,104
172,900 172,900 129,773 43,127
1,077,277 1,127,277 1,089,141 38,136
48,114 48,114 47,954 160
655,486 626,799 615,691 11,108
319,508 257,606 225,041 32,565
6,000 9,600 9,600 -
155,405 151,805 145,595 6,210
5,500 5,500 2,634 2,866
7,552,651 7,995,515 7,963,725 31,790
3,657,236 3,644,852 3,474,477 170,375
11,200 11,200 10,560 640
172,659 190,571 185,331 5,241
50,000 50,000 - 50,000
1,958,640 2,236,972 2,197,799 39,174
726,778 866,562 858,898 7,664
19,740 22,554 23,269 (716)
121,227 137,777 132,752 5,025
35,313 39,897 25,364 14,533
33,450 37,102 36,625 477
2,559 2,697 2,802 (105)
6,448 6,448 2,359 4,089
2,500 1,200 1,200 -
823,644 884,837 544,281 340,556
6,600 6,600 1,772 4,828
313,515 313,515 300,973 12,542
36,485 36,485 30,657 5,828



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
GENERAL FUND
BUDGET TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Amounts/ Positive
Original Final Budgetary Basis (Negative)
District attorney - county:
Salary and Wages - - - -
Fringe Benefits - - - -
Travel 400 400 - 400
Operating Expenditures 66,398 66,398 66,342 56
Capital Outlay 5,100 5,100 5,092 8
Public defender:
Salary and Wages - - - -
Fringe Benefits - - - -
Travel 8,500 8,500 350 8,150
Operating Expenditures 51,903 51,903 45,795 6,108
Capital Outlay 11,460 11,460 6,266 5,194
Purchasing:
Salary and Wages 360,548 80,173 80,173 -
Fringe Benefits 189,907 36,052 36,052 -
Travel 4,700 262 262 -
Operating Expenditures 19,339 5,473 5,473 -
Capital Outlay 4,500 416 416 -
Election board:
Salary and Wages 1,281,607 1,313,366 1,272,762 40,604
Fringe Benefits 505,773 482,014 434,440 47,574
Travel 24,720 16,720 10,624 6,096
Operating Expenditures 271,040 271,040 264,730 6,310
Capital Outlay 5,071 5,071 5,071 0
BOCC HR/Environmental Health & Safety:
Salary and Wages 529,714 460,890 285,307 175,583
Fringe Benefits 244,188 225,579 90,827 134,752
Travel 9,300.00 9,500.00 1,521 7,979
Operating Expenditures 41,731 71,591 28,309 43,282
Capital Outlay 9,500 27,000 22,780 4,220
Employee Benefits Department
Salary and Wages 285,149 292,136 291,873 263
Fringe Benefits 128,427 129,800 127,855 1,945
Travel 6,000 6,000 - 6,000
Operating Expenditures 11,900 11,900 9,737 2,163
Capital Outlay 2,257 2,257 1,257 1,000
MIS
Salary and Wages 1,583,283 1,636,178 1,600,443 35,735
Fringe Benefits 778,334 718,756 699,938 18,818
Travel 11,500 11,500 6,908 4,592
Operating Expenditures 2,188,791 2,370,683 2,237,522 133,161
Capital Outlay 252,044 340,719 285,331 55,388
Facilities Management:
Salary and Wages 1,179,997 1,209,340 963,937 245,403
Fringe Benefits 532,017 573,240 465,846 107,394
Travel - - - -
Operating Expenditures 446,410 549,609 394,225 155,384
Capital Outlay 78,500 88,182 40,503 47,679
Facilities Management-Custodial
Salary and Wages - - - -
Fringe Benefits - - - -
Travel - - - -
Operating Expenditures 313,000 364,000 298,336 65,664
Capital Outlay - - - -
Planning Commission
Salary and Wages 190,385 195,132 188,061 7,071
Fringe Benefits 72,006 72,939 71,035 1,904
Travel - - - -
Operating Expenditures 2,160 2,160 1,440 720
Capital Outlay - - - -

See the notes to the budgetary comparison schedules.



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
GENERAL FUND
BUDGET TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Amounts/ Positive
Original Final Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Court Services
Salary and Wages 716,200 760,772 740,866 19,906
Fringe Benefits 396,573 421,971 375,821 46,150
Travel - - - -
Operating Expenditures 2,160 2,160 2,040 120
Capital Outlay - - - -
Economic Development
Salary and Wages - - - -
Fringe Benefits - - - -
Travel - - - -
Operating Expenditures 250,000 250,000 250,000 -
Capital Outlay - - - -
Capital Projects Supplement
Operating Expenditures - - -
Employee Benefits Supplement
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures - 2,141,000 2,141,000 -
Capital Outlay
Self Insurance Supplement
Salary and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Travel
Operating Expenditures - 350,000 - 350,000 -
Capital Outlay
Reserve Fund
Salary and Wages - - - -
Fringe Benefits - - - -
Travel - - - -
Operating Expenditures 1,040,002 738 - 738
Capital Outlay - - - -
Total General Governmental 81,443,551 85,587,912 81,823,209 3,764,703
Public Safety
Sheriff Law Enforcement
Salary and Wages 9,286,992 9,949,661 9,948,099 1,562
Fringe Benefits 4,640,634 4,800,125 4,812,454 (12,329)
Travel - - - -
Operating Expenditures 486,000 486,000 486,000 (0)
Capital Outlay - - - -
Juvenile Detention:
Salary and Wages 5,250,002 5,451,122 5,398,718 52,404
Fringe Benefits 2,417,393 2,483,158 2,477,491 5,667
Travel 8,300 5,100 4,853 247
Operating Expenditures 600,467 678,667 611,329 67,338
Capital Outlay 69,177 69,177 69,013 164
Juvenile Bureau:
Salary and Wages 1,612,596 1,681,855 1,677,154 4,701
Fringe Benefits 825,021 803,932 777,903 26,029
Travel 9,780 780 95 685
Operating Expenditures 258,378 267,378 218,682 48,696
Capital Outlay 11,502 11,502 11,169 333
Emergency Management:
Salary and Wages 343,920 375,850 374,849 1,000
Fringe Benefits 160,906 167,406 165,387 2,019
Travel 5,000 5,400 5,194 206
Operating Expenditures 89,310 82,479 78,603 3,876
Capital Outlay 136,650 204,150 202,315 1,835
Total Public Safety 26,212,028 27,523,741 27,319,306 204,435
Health & Welfare
Social Services:
Salary and Wages 893,890 897,619 896,909 710
Fringe Benefits 363,014 398,782 393,347 5,435
Travel 2,000 1,100 685 415
Operating Expenditures 1,084,204 934,204 911,249 22,955
Capital Outlay 10,000 10,000 5,186 4,814
Total Health and Welfare 2,353,108 2,241,705 2,207,376 34,329

See the notes to the budgetary comparison schedules.



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
GENERAL FUND
BUDGET TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Amounts/ Positive
Original Final Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Culture & Recreation
Free Fair:
Salary and Wages 5,698 4,948 4,900 48
Fringe Benefits 436 436 375 61
Travel - - - -
Operating Expenditures 61,104 56,964 56,352 612
Capital Outlay - 10,250 10,091 159
Total Culture and Recreation 67,238 72,598 71,718 880
Road & Highway
District #1:
Salary and Wages 289,110 313,338 312,672 666
Fringe Benefits 139,682 126,102 125,055 1,047
Travel 7,500 12,500 12,442 58
Operating Expenditures 169,623 162,623 161,802 821
Capital Outlay 7,500 7,500 3,421 4,079
District #2:
Salary and Wages 238,003 197,453 188,520 8,933
Fringe Benefits 90,406 81,575 77,205 4,370
Travel 2,500 5,000 4,344 656
Operating Expenditures 22,500 30,000 26,500 3,500
Capital Outlay 4,500 1,000 877 123
District #3:
Salary and Wages 295,589 233,070 224,520 8,550
Fringe Benefits 140,943 121,795 77,662 44,133
Travel 5,500 14,500 14,301 199
Operating Expenditures 139,220 197,074 196,991 83
Capital Outlay 5,000 5,000 4,345 655
Engineer:
Salary and Wages 399,329 379,281 362,727 16,554
Fringe Benefits 127,392 129,348 126,186 3,162
Travel 8,000 8,000 2,365 5,635
Operating Expenditures 40,060 40,060 28,495 11,565
Capital Outlay 10,000 10,000 5,601 4,399
Total Road and Highway 2,142,357 2,075,219 1,956,030 119,189
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures 112,218,282 117,501,175 113,377,639 4,123,536
Excess of revenues over/(under) expenditures (2,197,173) (632,449) 26,070,667 26,703,116
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds - - 8,991,780 8,991,780
Transfers to other funds (13,325,954) (13,325,954) (22,316,954) 8,991,000
Total other financing sources (uses) (13,325,954) (13,325,954) (13,325,174) 17,982,780
Net change in fund balances (15,523,127) (13,958,404) 12,745,493 44,685,895
Fund balances - beginning 15,523,127 13,958,404 20,539,897 6,581,493
Fund balances - ending $ (0) $ 0 $ 33,285,390 $ 51,267,389
RECONCILIATION TO GAAP-BASIS FUND BALANCE
Property taxes receivable 5,836,428
Other taxes receivable 557,219
Accounts payable (2,336,009)
Accounts receivable 2,188,181
Intergovernmental receivable 242,464
Deferred inflows of resources (5,568,809)
Unearned revenue -
Current year encumbrances 2,717,240
Adjustment to prior year reserve for encumbrances 1,670,283
Reserve for inventory 110,631
Lease receivable 479,831
Deferred inflow of resources - Leases (475,782)
Self-insurance funds net activity (cash basis) (1,011,369)
Total Reconciling items (4,410,308)
Fund balance, June 30, 2024 (GAAP Basis) $ 37,695,693

See the notes to the budgetary comparison schedules.



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
Notes to Budgetary Comparison
Schedules June 30, 2024

Note I. Budgetary Data

Budgetary Comparison Schedules-General Fund and Debt Service Fund

A cash basis of accounting is used to prepare the Budgetary Comparison Schedules.
Reconciliation from the cash basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), is presented on the face of the schedule.

Budget Law and Practice

Guidelines for managing budgeted funds under the County Budget Act are defined by Title
19, Section 1410 of the Oklahoma County Statutes. At least thirty days prior to the beginning
of each fiscal year, the Budget Board shall complete a budget for each fund of the county for
which a budget is required. Each budget shall provide a complete financial plan for the
budget year. The budget format shall be as prescribed by the State Auditor and Inspector.
The format shall contain at least the following in tabular form for each fund, itemized by
department and account within each fund:

1. Actual revenues and expenditures for the immediate prior fiscal year;
2. Estimated actual revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year; and
3. Estimated revenues and proposed expenditures for the budget year.

The Budget Board complies with the County Budget Act, which is intended to:

1. Establish uniform and sound fiscal procedures for the preparation, adoption,
execution and control of budgets;

2. Enable counties to make financial plans for both current and capital expenditures
and to ensure that their executive staffs administer their respective functions in
accordance with adopted budgets;

3. Make available to public and investors sufficient information as to the financial
conditions, requirements and expectations of the county government; and

4. Assist county governments to improve and implement generally accepted
accounting principles as applied to governmental accounting, auditing, and financial
reporting and standards of governmental finance management.

The legal level of control is that expenditures budgeted in each fund may not exceed the
budgeted revenues, including fund balance, for the fund. Once approved, the Budget Board
may amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected modifications are required in
estimated revenues and appropriations.

Budgets are submitted annually in accordance with the County Budget Act and are prepared
on a modified cash basis. Revenues are budgeted in the year receipt is expected and
expenditures, including encumbrances, are budgeted in the year that the applicable
purchase orders are expected to be issued. The budget and actual financial schedules are
reported on this basis. Unencumbered appropriations for annually budgeted funds lapse
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
Notes to Budgetary Comparison
Schedules June 30, 2024

ninety days after fiscal year-end. The General Fund and the Debt Service Fund are the two
major funds with legally adopted annual budgets and Budgetary Comparison Schedules are
presented as Required Supplementary. Reconciliation from the budgetary basis of
accounting to GAAP in the United States of America is presented in the Budgetary
Comparison Schedule. All other funds do not have annual adopted budgets. Appropriations
for these funds are made on a monthly basis, based on the funds available.

Budgetary Control

Each fund’s appropriated budget is prepared on a detailed line-item basis. Revenues are
budgeted by source. Expenditures are budgeted by department and character (i.e. salary,
benefits, travel, maintenance and operation, and capital outlay) which constitutes the legal
level of control. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at this level. All budget
revisions at this level are subject to authorization by the department head and approval by
the Budget Board.

Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or
services. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve the applicable
appropriation, is utilized in the governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end
are reported as assignments of fund balance by purpose in the General Fund and as
commitments or restrictions of fund balance in other governmental funds. Encumbrances
do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored
during the subsequent year.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds
Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt service or
capital projects. The following are types of Special Revenue Funds.

County Bridge and Road Improvement Fund - The collection of fuel tax and gross production
proceeds to be used for the construction, replacement, and repair of county roads and bridges,
including engineering and design services.

Treasurer’s Mortgage Fee Fund —For the collection of certification fees by the County Treasurer’s
office for restricted expenditures of the office.

Special Projects Fund - A fund established to account for the funds received from the U.S. Treasury
Department’s Coronavirus Relief Fund established by CARES. The payments received from the fund
may only be used to cover costs that are necessary due to the public health emergency created by
COVID-19.

ARPA-LATCF Fund -Afund established for the Local Assistance and Tribal Consistency Fund for the
general revenue enhancement program as part of the American Rescue Plan. The fund may be used
by Tribal governments for any governmental purpose other than a lobbying activity.

County Clerk’s Lien Fee Fund - For the collection of fees for mailing notices of mechanic liens for
restricted expenditures of the office.

UCC Central Filing Fee Fund - For the collection of fees and expenditures for filing Uniform
Commercial Code financing statements for restricted expenditures of the office.

Records Management & Preservation Fund - The collection of fees and expenditures in the County
Clerk’s office for the purpose of preserving, maintaining and archiving recorded instruments.

Sheriff Service Fee Fund - The collection and processing of miscellaneous fees by the County
Sheriff’s office for restricted expenditures.

Sheriff Special Revenue Fund - Accounts for collections and expenditures of prisoner boarding
fees, for the operation of the jail commissary, housing of federal prisoners, drug enforcement, travel,
and training activities of the sheriff’s department. Also used to record the revenues and expenditures
of monies received from granting agencies in accordance with the terms of the grant agreement.

Sheriff Grant Fund —For the collection and expenditures of state and federal grants for various
programs in accordance with the terms of the grant agreements.

Assessor’s Revolving Fee Fund - For the collection and expenditures of fees for furnishing copies
of records and maps by the County Assessor’s office for restricted expenditures.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(Special Revenue Funds, Continued)

Juvenile Probation Fee Fund - For the collection and expenditures of probation fees of juveniles
for restricted expenditures of the Juvenile Bureau.

Juvenile Grant Fund - For the collection and expenditures of numerous state and federal grants for
juvenile offender programs in accordance with the terms of the grant agreements.

Planning Commission Fund - For the collection and expenditures of permit fees and petitions for
amendments to zoning regulations by the County Planning department.

Local Emergency Planning Commission — For the collection and expenditures of federal grant
funds for the handling of hazardous materials emergency planning.

Emergency Management Fund - For the collection and expenditures of federal grant funds for the
general operation of the Emergency Management department.

Community Service Fee Fund - For the collection and expenditures of fees of persons sentenced
by the court to perform community service.

Community Sentencing Fund - For the collection and expenditures of Department of Corrections
reimbursement.

Drug Court Fund - For the collection and expenditures of state funding for the drug court program.

Drug Court User Fee Fund - For the collection and expenditures of user fees collected from
offenders through the drug court program.

Mental Health Court Fund - For the collection and expenditures of state funding for the county
mental health program, which includes participant incentives.

SHINE Program Fund - Forthe collection and expenditures of funding for the county SHINE program,
which was established for court ordered, low-level offenders to remove graffiti, overgrowth of weeds

and grass, and the pickup and hauling of trash and debris from public areas within Oklahoma County.

MIS Special Revenue Fund - for the collection and expenditures of specific programs administered
by the Management Information Services (MIS) department.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(Special Revenue Funds, Continued)

Election Board-CTCL - A fund established to account for the funds received from The Center for
Tech and Civic Life (CTCL) Foundation. The funds must be used exclusively for the public purpose of
planning and operationalizing safe and secure election administration in Oklahoma County, covering
costs that are necessary due to the public health emergency created by COVID-19.

Settlement Fund - A fund established to account for the Class Action Settlement Funds received
from Opioid and Juul e-cigarette manufacturing and sales practices. The fund may only be used to
cover costs that are incurred in response to research, prevention, treatment, and recovery programs
related to substance use.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(Continued)

Capital Project Funds
Capital project funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction
of capital facilities and other capital assets.

Capital Projects Regular — Established to be used for various capital improvement projects. The
funds major financial resource is transfers from General Fund.

Capital Projects Districts —fFor the remaining fund balance of funds for highway capital projects.

Capital Projects Tinker | —For the collection and expenditures of the remaining fund balance and
interest earned from proceeds of a bond issue for the acquisition and clearing of land surrounding
Tinker Air Force base.

County Bonds 2008 - Established to account for the collection and expenditure of General
Obligation Bonds issued in 2008 for the acquisition of the General Motors plant and land located near
Tinker Air Force Base, natural hazard mitigation and flooding control at Crutcho Creek and Deer
Creek surrounding areas, and to provide funds for specific capital improvements for the Oklahoma
County Courthouse and Annex Buildings.

Jail Facility — For the collection and expenditures of a temporary sales tax in 1988 for the
construction of the Oklahoma County Jail built in 1992.

Sale of Property —For the collection and expenditure of funds received from the sale of land, sites or
structures.

Tinker Clearing Il — Accounts for the proceeds of general obligation bonds for the purpose of
acquiring property in the vicinity of Tinker Air Force Base in order to provide for the safety of those
citizens of the County as well as provide for the continued assurance of the economic wellbeing of
Oklahoma County and its citizens.

Capital Project- New Jail Facility — Established to account for the collection and expenditures from
revenue sources other than the Series 2023 Bonds issued for the Capital Projects- New Jail
construction.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Unearned Revenue
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue-Intergovernmental

Unavailable revenue-Settlement proceeds
Total Deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances

OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue

County Bridge & ARPA - Local Records

Road Treasurer's Special Projects Assistance County Clerk's UCC Central Management & Sheriff Service Sheriff Special Sheriff Grant Assessor's Juvenile
Improvement Mortgage Fee Fund (CARES) Fund Lien Fee Filing Preservation Fee Revenue Fund Revolving Fee Probation Fee
$ 3,922,394  § 477,066 $ 1,194,928 § 97,439  $ 633,019 §$ 386,507 $ 1,228,472 $ 3,100,974 $ 1,436,453  $ 393,444 $ 132,776 $ 61,626
103,103 12,540 31,410 2,561 18,574 7,894 43,784 81,511 37,786 10,342 3,490 1,620

- - - - - 1,010 5,827 10,695 - - - -

89,371 - - - 73,589 62,205 288,837 33,401 - - 2,630 -

- - - - - - - - 30,477 206,775 - -

- - - - - - - - 262,400 - - -
$ 4,114,868 489,606 $ 1,226,338 § 100,000 $ 725,182 $ 457,616 $ 1,666,920  § 3,226,581  $ 1,767,116 $ 610,561  $ 138,896 $ 63,246

$ 350,932 $ 22,472 $ 1,226,338 $ - $ 51,935 $ 7,616 $ 17,886 $ 174,254 $ 80,221 $ 20,029 $ - $ -

350,932 22,472 1,226,338 - 51,935 7,616 17,886 174,254 80,221 20,029 - -

- - - - - - - - - 206,775 - -

- - - - - - - - - 206,775 - -

- - - - - - - - 262,400 - - -
3,763,935 467,134 - 100,000 673,247 450,000 1,549,034 3,052,327 1,424,495 383,757 138,896 63,246
3,763,935 467,134 - 100,000 673,247 450,000 1,549,034 3,052,327 1,686,895 383,757 138,896 63,246
$ 4,114,867 $ 489,606 $ 1,226,338 $ 100,000 $ 725,182 $ 457,616 $ 1,666,920  § 3,226,581  $ 1,767,116 $ 610,561  $ 138,896 $ 63,246
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Unearned Revenue
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue-Intergovernmental

Unavailable revenue-Settlement proceeds
Total Deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances

OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024
Special Revenue
Local
Emergency

Juvenile Grant Planning Planning Emergency Community Community Drug Court Mental Health
Fund Commision Comm Management Service Fee Sentencing Drug Court User Fee Court Fund Shine Program
$ 292,277 $ 443,007 $ 9,372 $ 619,947 $ 183,581 $ 157,313 $ 78,719 $ 388,176 $ 13,283 $ 161,070
7,683 11,503 246 16,296 4,826 4,135 2,069 10,203 349 4,234
$ 299,960 $ 454,510 $ 9,618.00 $ 636,243.00 $ 188,407.00 $ 161,448.00 $ 80,788.00 $ 398,379.00 $ 13,632.00 $ 165,304.00
$ 4526 $ 12,818 § - $ 2,720 $ 4,243 $ - $ 1,937 $ - $ 649 $ 6,950
4,526 12,818 - 2,720 4,243 - 1,937 - 649 6,950
295,434 441,692 9,618 633,523 184,164 161,448 78,851 398,379 12,983 158,354
295,434 441,692 9,618 633,523 184,164 161,448 78,851 398,379 12,983 158,354
$ 299,960 $ 454,510 $ 9,618 $ 636,243 $ 188,407 $ 161,448 $ 80,788 $ 398,379 $ 13,632 $ 165,304

(continued)
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Unearned Revenue
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue-Intergovernmental

Unavailable revenue-Settlement proceeds
Total Deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances

OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Capital
Election Board - Special Revenue Capital Projects Capital Projects Capital Projects County Bonds
MIS Fund CTCL Settlement Fund Total Regular Districts Tinker | 2008 Jail Facility

- $ 12,646  $ 2,531,925 $ 17,956,414 5,173,263  § 462,336  $ 744,971 $ 1,276,198  § 8,471
- 332 66,553 483,044 135,983 12,153 19,582 33,546 223
- - - 17,532 21,791 - 3,203 11,239 -
- - 4,382,834 4,932,867 - - - 148,800 -
- - - 237,252 - - - - -
- - - 262,400 - - - - -
- $ 12,978.00 $ 6,981,312.00 $ 23,889,509.00 $ 5,331,037 $ 474,489 $ 767,756 $ 1,469,783 $ 8,694
- $ - $ - $ 1,985,526  $ 2,555 $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - 1,985,526 2,555 - - - -
- - - 206,775 - - - 148,800 -

- 4,382,834 4,382,834 - - - - -
- - 4,382,834 4,589,609 - - - 148,800 -
- - - 262,400 - - - - -
- 12,978 2,598,479 17,051,974 1,174,831 - 767,756 1,320,983 8,694
- - - - 4,153,651 474,489 - - -
- 12,978 2,598,479 17,314,374 5,328,482 474,489 767,756 1,320,983 8,694
- $ 12,978  $ 6,981,313  § 23,889,509  $ 5,331,037 § 474,489 $ 767,756 $ 1,469,783 § 8,694

(continued)
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Unearned Revenue
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue-Intergovernmental

Unavailable revenue-Settlement proceeds
Total Deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,

and fund balances

OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024
Projects
Sale of Capital Project - Capital Projects Total Nonmajor
Sheriff Building Property Tinker Clearing Il New Jail Facility Total Governmental Funds
$ - $ 8,512 $ 2,870,505 $ 10,672,282 $ 21,216,538 $ 39,172,952
- 224 75,453 280,528 557,692 1,040,736
- 37 12,306 - 48,576 66,108
- - - - 148,800 5,081,667
- - - - - 237,252
- - - - - 262,400
$ - $ 8,773 $ 2,958,264 $ 10,952,810 $ 21,971,606 $ 45,861,115
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2,555 $ 1,988,081
- - - 4,990,710 4,990,710 4,990,710
- - - 4,990,710 4,993,265 6,978,791
- - - - 148,800 355,575
- - - - - 4,382,834
- - - - 148,800 4,738,409
- - - - - 262,400
- - 2,958,264 - 6,230,528 23,282,502
- 8,773 - 5,962,100 10,599,013 10,599,013
- 8,773 2,958,264 5,962,100 16,829,541 34,143,915
$ - $ 8,773 $ 2,958,264 $ 10,952,810 $ 21,971,606 $ 45,861,115
(continued)
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REVENUES
Charges for services
Intergovernmental revenues
Investment income (loss)
Miscellaneous revenue
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Roads and highways
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess(deficiency) of revenues

over(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Sale of capital assets

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances-beginning
Fund balances-ending

OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue

County Bridge & ARPA - Local Records

Road Treasurer's Special Projects Assistance County Clerk's UCC Central Management & Sheriff Service Sheriff Special Sheriff Grant Assessor's Juvenile
Improvement Mortgage Fee Fund (CARES) Fund Lien Fee Filing Preservation Fee Revenue Fund Revolving Fee Probation Fee
$ - $ 117,525 $ - $ - $ 405,795  $ 624,820 $ 1,676,583 $ 4,659,417 $ - $ - $ 16,130  $ 17,494

966,991 - 2,043,897 50,000 - - - 274,210 431,198 411,326 - -

- - - - - 17,321 64,156 143,129 58,458 - - -

- - - - - - - - 338,210 135 - -
$ 966,991 $ 117,525 $ 2,043,897 § 50,000 $ 405,795  $ 642,141 $ 1,740,739 $ 5,076,756 $ 827,866  $ 411,461 § 16,130  § 17,494

- 5,653 2,043,897 - 223,879 634,112 1,581,688 - - - -
- - - - - - - 5,110,092 517,987 364,160 - 2,001

1,647,869 - - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - 48,282 - - -

- - - - - - - - 448 - - -

- 40,302 - - 87,375 8,995 6,080 102,040 63,614 96,594 - -
1,647,869 45,955 2,043,897 - 311,254 643,107 1,587,768 5,212,132 630,331 460,754 - 2,001
(680,878) 71,570 - 50,000 94,541 (966) 152,971 (135,376) 197,535 (49,293) 16,130 15,493
(680,878) 71,570 - 50,000 94,541 (966) 152,971 (135,376) 197,535 (49,293) 16,130 15,493
4,444,813 395,564 - 50,000 578,706 450,966 1,396,063 3,187,703 1,489,360 433,050 122,766 47,753
$ 3763935 $ 467,134 $ - $ 100,000 $ 673,247  $ 450,000 $ 1,549,034 $ 3,052,327 $ 1,686,895 $ 383,757 $ 138,896 $ 63,246
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REVENUES
Charges for services
Intergovernmental revenues
Investment income (loss)
Miscellaneous revenue
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Roads and highways
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess(deficiency) of revenues
over(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Sale of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances-beginning
Fund balances-ending

OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Juvenile Grant Planning Emergency Community Community Drug Court Mental Health

Fund Commision Management Service Fee Sentencing Drug Court User Fee Court Fund Shine Program
$ - $ 370,963 $ - $ 133,673 $ - $ - - $ - $ 220
317,341 - 92,000 - - 362,617 - 3,000 183,408

- 3,207 - - - 596,821 - -
$ 317,341 § 374,170 $ 92,000 $ 133,673  $ - $ 362,617 596,821  $ 3,000 $ 183,628
- 365,863 - 100,540 - 325,919 615,287 3,894 287,400

247,658 - 12,575 - - - - - -
26,645 2,234 9,200 4,624 - 2,124 - - 37,288
274,303 368,097 21,775 105,164 - 328,043 615,287 3,894 324,688
43,038 6,073 70,225 28,509 - 34,574 (18,466) (894) (141,060)

- - - - - 11,910 - - -

- - - - - - (11,910) - -

- - . - - 11,910 (11,910) - -
43,038 6,073 70,225 28,509 - 46,484 (30,376) (894) (141,0860)
252,396 435,619 563,298 155,655 161,448 32,367 428,755 13,877 299,414
$ 295,434 $ 441,692 $ 633,523 § 184,164 $ 161,448 § 78,851 398,379 $ 12,983 § 158,354

(continued)
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Capital Projects

Election Board - Special Revenue Capital Projects Capital Projects  Capital Projects County Bonds Sale of
MIS Fund CTCL Settlement Fund Total Regular Districts Tinker | 2008 Jail Facility Sheriff Building Property
REVENUES
Charges for services $ - $ - $ 1,901,122 § 9,923,742  $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental revenues - - - 5,135,988 105,580 - - - - - -
Investment income (loss) - - - 283,064 279,920 - 39,803 53,851 1,067 - 480
Miscellaneous revenue - - - 938,373 - - 200 - - - -
Total revenues $ - $ - $ 1,901,122 $ 16,281,167 385,500 § - $ 40,003 § 53,851 § 1,067 $ - $ 480
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - - 6,188,132 25,311 - - - - - -
Public safety - - - 6,254,473 - - - - - - -
Roads and highways - - - 1,647,869 - - - - - - -
Debt service: -
Principal - - - 48,282 - - - - - - -
Interest - - - 448 - - - - - - -
Capital outlay - 12,849 - 499,964 830,069 - - - - - -
Total expenditures - 12,849 - 14,639,168 855,380 - - - - - -
Excess(deficiency) of revenues
over(under) expenditures - (12,849) 1,901,122 1,641,999 (469,880) - 40,003 53,851 1,067 - 480
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds - - - 11,910 860,000 - - - - - -
Transfers to other funds (20,952) - - (32,862) - - - - - - -
Sale of capital assets - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (20,952) - - (20,952) 860,000 - - - - - -
Net change in fund balances (20,953) (12,849) 1,901,122 1,621,046 390,120 - 40,003 53,851 1,067 - 480
Fund balances-beginning 20,953 25,827 697,357 15,693,328 4,938,362 474,489 727,753 1,267,132 7,627 - 8,293
Fund balances-ending $ - $ 12,978 $ 2,598,479 $ 17,314,374 $ 5,328,482  $ 474,489 $ 767,756  $ 1,320,983 $ 8,694 $ - $ 8,773

(continued)



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Total Nonmajor

Capital Project - Capital Projects Governmental
Tinker Clearing Il New Jail Facility Total Funds
REVENUES
Charges for services $ - $ - $ - $ 9,923,742
Intergovernmental revenues - 5,009,310 5,114,890 10,250,878
Investment income (loss) 127,170 462,080 964,371 1,247,435
Miscellaneous revenue - - 200 938,573
Total revenues $ 127,170 $ 5,471,390 $ 6,079,461 $ 22,360,628
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - 25,311 6,213,443
Public safety - - - 6,254,473
Roads and highways - - - 1,647,869
Debt service: - -
Principal - - - 48,282
Interest - - - 448
Capital outlay - 5,009,290 5,839,359 6,339,323
Total expenditures - 5,009,290 5,864,670 20,503,838
Excess(deficiency) of revenues
over(under) expenditures 127,170 462,100 214,791 1,856,790
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds - 3,500,000 4,360,000 4,371,910
Transfers to other funds - - - (32,862)
Sale of capital assets - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - 3,500,000 4,360,000 4,339,048
Net change in fund balances 127,170 3,962,100 4,574,791 6,195,837
Fund balances-beginning 2,831,094 2,000,000 12,254,750 27,948,078
Fund balances-ending $ 2,958,264 $ 5,962,100 $ 16,829,541  § 34,143,915

(continued)



OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
DEBT SERVICE FUND
BUDGET TO ACTUAL COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with Final
Actual Amounts/ Budget-Positive
Original Final Budgetary Basis (Negative)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 6,660,790 $ 6,660,790 $ 6,596,714 $ 64,076
Investment income $ - $ - $ 222,335 $ (222,335)
Miscellaneous revenue $ - 3 - 3 -8 -
Total revenues $ 6,660,790 $ 6,660,790 $ 6,819,049 $ (158,259)
EXPENDITURES
Redemption of debt $ 12,293,750 $ 12,293,750 $ 6,616,667 $ 5,677,083
Interest $ 456,441 $ 456,441 $ 2,117,144 $ (1,660,703)
Total expenditures $ 12,750,191 $ 12,750,191 $ 8,733,811 $ 4,016,380
Excess(deficiency) of revenues
over(under) expenditures $ (6,089,401) $ (6,089,401) $ (1,914,762) $ 4,174,639
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds $ - 3 - 3 -8 -
Net change in fund balances $ (6,089,401) $ (6,089,401) $ (1,914,762)  $ 4,174,639
Fund balance-beginning (Non-GAAP budgetary basis) $ 7,277,997 $ 7,277,997 $ 7,277,997 $ -
Fund balance-ending (Non-GAAP budgetary basis) $ 1,188,596 $ 1,188,596 $ 5,363,235 $ 4,174,639
ADJUSTMENTS TO GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Property tax receivable $ 448,762
Other taxes receivable $ 31,124
Interest receivable $ 22,937
Deferred revenue $ (390,335)
Fund balance-ending (GAAP basis) $ 5,475,723






FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds — Used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others.

Fiduciary funds cannot be used to support the County’s programs.
Custodial Funds — Used to report resources held by the County in a purely custodial

capacity (assets equal liabilities). Custodial funds involve only the receipt, temporary

investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals or other governments.
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Custodial Funds

Community
Defined Benefit Safety
Pension Trust Cities and Health Unapportioned Investment Foreign Court Clerk
Fund Schools Towns Department Tax Protest Tax Excess Resale Fund Mortgage Tax  Revolving Fund
Assets
Cash and investments $ 6,393,315 $ 5,183,971 $ 546,279 $ 74,452 $ 483,949 $ 1,616,112 $ 7,947,949 $ 771,010 $ 543 $ -
Property taxes receivable, net - 49,717,262 9,805,850 1,515,449 - - - - - -
Due from other governments - 63,846 1,083,277 - - - - - - -
Interest receivable 66,034 - - - - - - - - -
Contributions receivable - - - - - - - - - -
Total assets $ 6,459,349  $ 54,965,078 $ 11,435,406 $ 1,589,900 $ 483,949 $ 1,616,112 $ 7,947,949 $ 771,010 $ 543 $ -
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Due to other governments - 54,965,078 11,435,406 1,589,900 483,949 - - - 543 -
Due to others - - - - - - - - - -
Total liabilities - 54,965,078 11,435,406 1,589,900 483,949 - - - 543 -
Net Position
Restricted for
Individuals, organization, other governments 6,459,349 - - - - 1,616,112 7,947,949 771,010 - -
Total Net Position $ 6,459,349 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,616,112 $ 7,947,949 $ 771,010 $ - $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Custodial Funds

Court Clerk Veteran
Records Mgmt Special Work Drug Court Mental Health Treatment Public Defender Total Custodial
& Preservation Restitution Contribution Court Fund Court Admin Specialty Court Law Library Depository Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 683,183 $ 89,074 $ 15,868 $ 314,680 $ 37,834 $ 409,098 $ 182,285 $ 35,670,530 $ 54,026,814
Property taxes receivable, net - - - - - - - - 61,038,561
Due from other governments - - - - - - 32,452 - 1,179,575
Interest receivable - - - - - - - - -
Contributions receivable - - - - - - - - -
Total assets $ 683,183 $ 89,074 $ 15,868 $ 314,680 $ 37,834 $ 409,098 $ 214,737 $ 35,670,530 $ 116,244,950
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 26,293 $ - $ 26,293
Due to other governments - - - - - - - - 68,474,876
Due to others - - - - - - - - -
Total liabilities - - - - - - 26,293 - 68,501,169
Net Position
Restricted for
Individuals, organization, other governments 683,183 89,074 15,868 314,680 37,834 409,098 188,444 35,670,530 47,743,781
Total Net Position $ 683,183 $ 89,074 $ 15,868 $ 314,680 $ 37,834 § 409,098 $ 188,444 $ 35,670,530 $ 47,743,781

(continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Custodial Funds

Community
Defined Benefit Safety Court Clerk
Pension Trust Health Unapportioned Investment Foreign Revolving
Fund Schools Cities and Towns Department Tax Protest Tax Excess Resale Fund Mortgage Tax Fund
Additions
Contributions:
Employer $ 1,011,416 - $ - - $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ -
Investment income:

Interest 451,365 - - - - - - - - -
Property tax collections for other governments - 823,071,678 159,306,366 24,217,041 41,176,505 1,698,100 6,300,752 - - -
Other taxes and fees for other governments - 372,093 9,324,437 817,559 -
Property tax collections by individuals - - - - - 31,765 - - - -
Held for individuals

Total Additions $ 1,462,781 823,443,772 § 168,630,803 24,217,041 $ 41,176,505  $ 1,729,866 6,300,752 $ 817,559 $ - $ -
Deductions
Benefits $ 1,240,220
Administrative expenses 18,459 46,549 -
Payments of property tax to other governments 823,071,678 159,306,366 24,217,041 41,176,505 1,330,382 4,451,014
Payments of other taxes and fees to other governments 372,093 9,324,437
Property tax payments to individuals 3,126
Payments to individuals
Total Deductions 1,258,679 823,443,772 168,630,803 24,217,041 41,176,505 1,333,508 4,451,014 46,549 - -
Change in Net Position 204,102 - - - - 396,358 1,849,738 771,010 - -
Net Position
Beginning of year 6,255,247 - - - - 1,219,754 6,098,211 - - -
End of year $ 6,459,349 - $ - - $ - $ 1,616,112 7,947,949 $ 771,010 $ - $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Custodial Funds

Court Clerk Veteran Public
Records Mgmt  Special Work Drug Court Mental Health Treatment Defender Total Custodial
& Preservation Restitution Contribution Court Fund Court Admin Specialty Court Law Library Depository Funds Funds
Additions
Contributions:

Employer $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Investment income:

Interest - - - - - - - - -
Property tax collections for other governments - - - - - - - - 1,055,770,442
Other taxes and fees for other governments 722,526 148,663 47,618 380,983 613,952 20,289,622 32,717,453
Property tax collections by individuals - - - - - - - - 31,765
Held for individuals 5,760 65,675,896 65,681,656

Total Additions $ 722,526 $ - $ 5,760 $ 148,663 $ 47,618 $ 380,983 $ 613,952 $ 85,965,518 $ 1,154,201,317

Deductions

Benefits $ -

Administrative expenses 487,406 167,797 133,362 328,345 626,620 1,790,079
Payments of property tax to other governments 1,053,552,986
Payments of other taxes and fees to other governments 21,395,260 31,091,790
Property tax payments to individuals - 3,126
Payments to individuals 16,884 67,716,936 67,733,820
Total Deductions 487,406 - 16,884 167,797 133,362 328,345 626,620 89,112,196 1,154,171,802
Change in Net Position 235,120 - (11,124) (19,134) (85,744) 52,638 (12,668) (3,146,678) 29,515

Net Position
Beginning of year 448,063 89,074 26,992 333,813 123,578 356,460 201,113 38,817,208 47,714,266
End of year $ 683,183 $ 89,074 $ 15868 $ 314,679 §$ 37,834 $ 409,098 $ 188,444 $ 35,670,529 §$ 47,743,781

(continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

120



Oklahoma County

(=) oS
w o« = S ui
= o i S o) w o = —_— = a a o
= 4 =] = o [} w (=} x©
E0 T S e LR R A T ke L ST e AN SRR AR G TR el Y A
g 2 g SAE) FeEd z £ 2% . e £z off of <fF wd €3 E-  2F 2% so z¥ /b g9z sY ez ew B 83 3°
2 = 3 2 g =5 z z @ SE o ©f s55 58 | BO 25 R 28 el B 8E SELESEE O o8 b e 0% ®0o
24BIH5118 3 g : = 58 = & = 22 25 25 238" egiiesl 23 25 =iy 23 2% 2% zZz Z0 2z 2F 28 23 28 2o 22 £wag
WATERLOO 1 il it i i i i DL = = T T e = i N '3 g - 248TH / WATERLOO
6 : 5 4 H Il ' # —1 L l»! iy E | R 4 3 20 1 6 | 5 4 ” 3 2 [ | T-14-N
! | EW90
234TH ST/ | 1 | ) l
SORGHUM MILL i L IL_T & j 234TH / SORGHUM MILL
i | G 125 7 8 9 10 1 1227
7 8 9L: v | L //;/ EW91
220TH ST/ ! 220TH/ COFFE CREEK
COFFE CREEK
EW 92
206TH ST/ 206TH / COVELL RD
COVELL RD
EW 93
192ND ST/ | 192ND / DANFORTH
DANFORTH | :
EW 94
LB 178TH / EDMOND
EDMOND
‘ EW 95
UEAAI 164TH/15TH T-14-N
15TH | T-13.N
‘ EW 9%
150TH ST | | 150TH ST
‘ | Ew o7
EW 97
MEMORIAL RD MEMORIAL RD
EW 98
EW 98
122ND ST SN § ! 122ND ST
\ —8
; 22 23 124
(Rl I
) EW 99
EW 99 ypishel =2t
R AR R R s=w T ] = s i ‘ 108TH / HEFNER RD
X | o 4| p6 - ~
- = =2 26 25 29 28 o 27 =1 25 30 29 x 27 26 25 !
! Oklahoma ) ’ B
County Road S EW 100 | i( H: el £ 1o | Tones i e f | = E\IIRVI'I!?gN RD
BRITTON RD ﬁ@ﬂf——itsﬁf =V = Ay e
-- Major Collector
EW 101
S wiLsHRe  T-13-N
< 9 WILSHIRE BLVD T-12-N
== Minor Collector
] i EW 102 Ew 102
= County Section Line (w102 | Ehge>
— Principle Arterial/Other |
EW 103 EW 103
SOTHISTH 50TH ST
Uni d ’ et R
‘ Al i
T T | A |
nincorporate ) T2 Raw il Hi_ I e
EW N R2W | o |1 13 36TH ST
l:] 36TH ST | =
I e ] .
o d 5 Z‘; H = [ j\ LE‘ ﬂJ ‘ Il H EW 105
H— 1 i
Commissioner Boundaries W05 i | ool — 23RD ST
i i )+ | I
(= | .
] . A ) EW 106
EW 106 | | Ghactaw R
10TH ST =kt
EW 107
EW 107 RENOAVE T-12-N
RENO AVE T-11-N
( ) - 2 il S = [ E B | R=Rld 1 o= L/ EW 108
EW108 i ) | = : L i ( [ = : ; : L ‘ : 15TH ST
15TH ST > : T = -
EW 109
EWH0D 29TH ST
29TH ST
' j P EEELNSE i N [ =l ik | K I - Hlewno
EW 110 e imas 2= : 1} 3 Lol ) | 44TH ST
A4TH ST ! 3 11N : T11N R2W
» Tinker 23
See
EW 111
EW 111 59TH ST
59TH ST
1
74TH ST = ) ‘
! 2 ) 43 o % ] 33 T = g < Ny n | 2 [ I T r I
] | x ! 3\ \ ‘. o Y A . EW 113
U it (O T el = = 2 = § " = PR = = . = =l = 89THST T-11-N
= sy o 0w ~ ©w @ > oz -E aw Y= <= wa © 0 g @ o ® ow = > N &= ry=) ©0 ~0 0 @
gz 82 .33 85 = g2 83z 8% g& S SIS SRR SI= L= e i SO S < e o2& 22 |W I 8% e 1 88 88 &8 ]2 '3F
a5 = 23 0= B 03 0s e ol oW ol o= o= 03 o 0 o 00 2a o n? 9 0z oo 2< g 0> o 09 0T &
23 25 =g %2z = Zg 2% 22 = 22 2% =2z 2E oz 2y z6 %y 23 O * 20 & i 28 2% 29 5.2 2g =4¢ 23 2z 2
(8] w o w = o x w = Q = = (= w = o @ w
2 é e g = g == o = a g z2 > S < z o 2z :w:l z T [} 2 I“'." = =) (=) < o
0 ) Qg = 3 5 @
© s co ee 3 oo 0 05 1 2 3 4 121
OKLAHOMA COUNTY
ENGINEERIN G DEPARTMENT

B W Vies
JANUARY. 2022



	8 - Section Page - Financial Section
	11 - Section Page - Basic Financial Statements
	22 - Section Page - Notes to the Financial Statements
	24 - Section Page- Required Supplementary Information
	31 - Section Page - Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules
	36 - Section Page - Fiduciary Funds
	Elected Officials_Final
	FINAL - GW and Reconciliation Statements 24 (002) 1
	Exhibit 4
	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 2
	Exhibit 3

	FINAL - Proprietary Funds 23-24 1
	Statement of Net Assets
	Statement of Rev_Exp_& Chg
	Statement of Cash Flows

	Org Chart_Final
	Slide 1: Oklahoma COUNTY ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



